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June 1, 2011

To the Members of the Board:

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the St. Joseph County Airport Authority for
the fiscal year ended December 31, 2010, is submitted herewith. This report was prepared
by the Department of Administration and Finance of the St. Joseph County Airport Authority
in conjunction with the Auditor's Office of St. Joseph County, Indiana, and the Indiana State
Board of Accounts.

Responsibility for both the accuracy of the presented data and the completeness and
fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the Airport Authority. We
believe the data, as presented, is accurate in all material aspects; that it is presented in a
manner designed to fairly set forth the financial position and results of operations of the
Airport Authority; and that all disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain the
maximum understanding of the Airport Authority's financial affairs have been included.

The guidelines recommended by the Government Finance Officers Association of the United
States and Canada have been followed in the preparation of this report. The GFOA awards
Certificates of Achievement to those governments whose annual financial reports are judged
to conform substantially to the high standards of public financial reporting, including generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP) promulgated by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board. It is our belief that the accompanying 2010 Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report meets program standards, and it will be submitted to the Government
Finance Officers Association for their review. GAAP requires that management provide a
narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany the financial statements in the
form of a Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). One should read this letter of
transmittal in conjunction with the MD&A that is located immediately following the report of
the independent auditor in the Financial Section of this report.

4477 Progress Drive South Bend, IN 46628 | 574.282.4590 | fax: 574.239.2585 | info@flysbn.com
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THE REPORTING ENTITY

The St. Joseph County Airport Authority (the "Airport Authority") is a municipal corporation
established January 1, 1974, by the St. Joseph County, Indiana, Council, under authority
granted by Indiana Statute (1.C. 1971 19-6-2 as amended by Chapter 3.5, commonly known
as Public Law 304 and superseded by I.C. 8-22-3). The Authority, a component unit of St.
Joseph County, has jurisdiction over a special district and was established for the general
purpose of acquiring, maintaining, operating, and financing airports and landing fields in St.
Joseph County, Indiana; and in connection therewith is authorized, among other things, to
issue general obligation and revenue bonds and to levy taxes in accordance with the
provisions of the statute. The Airport Authority administers South Bend Regional Airport in
South Bend, Indiana. The Airport Authority has no stockholders or equity holders and all
revenues and other receipts must be disbursed in accordance with such statute. The
Authority has no component units.

The Airport Authority's bi-partisan Board consists of four members which are appointed by
the St. Joseph County Commissioners.

PROFILE OF SOUTH BEND REGIONAL AIRPORT

The South Bend Regional Airport is located in North Central Indiana, approximately 4 miles
west of South Bend and two miles south of the Michigan border.

The Airport was owned and operated by St. Joseph County from 1938 until January 1,
1974, when the St. Joseph County Council created the St. Joseph County Airport Authority
District. The name of the Airport was also changed on January 1, 1974, from the St
Joseph County Airport to the Michiana Regional Airport to reflect its new regional character
(Michigan and Indiana).

In 1993, Michiana Regional Airport was renamed Michiana Regional Transportation Center
by the Airport Authority Board. The impetus for the change was the relocation of South
Shore rail service to the airport. Finally, in 1999, the facility became South Bend Regional
Airport to more clearly identify its location for national and international travelers. South
Bend Regional Airport is the only small airport in the United States featuring air, interstate
rail, and interstate bus services at one multi-modal terminatl location.

The eighteenth year of South Shore Railroad service to South Bend Regional Airport was
cause for optimism in that the Airport is attempting to draw "train to plane" passengers from
the Northwestern Indiana population. The South Shore is an inter-urban electric raif service
with a western terminus of downtown Chicago, Illinois.

The South Bend Regional Airport has the typical airport tenant mixture, such as: rental cars,
restauranteur, parking operator (Republic Parking System), etc. Hertz, Avis, Budget,
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National, Alamo, and Enterprise rental car agencies all occupy terminal building space
along with Air Host, Inc., a subsidiary of Hospitality Flight Services, Inc., which operates the
restaurant, the gift shop, and the lounge, as well as all coin-operated concessions in the
terminal building. A full complement of ground transportation is available (including ten (10)
cab companies; and Transpo the city bus line). The Airport also serves as the only intercity
bus terminal for the South Bend area housing the Greyhound Bus Line, Indiana Highways,
and Hoosier Ride.

tn addition to the intercity buses, Coach USA Lines, a commuter limousine service
operating between South Bend and Chicago's O'Hare and Midway Airports, also occupies
space in the terminal.

Other airport businesses include: AAA Federal Credit Union ATM, Smarte Carte (baggage
carts), Performance Plus (custodial service), Transportation Security Administration
(screenpoint security), interspace Airport Advertising, E.C. Delivery, and Rush Delivery.

Atlantic Aviation, Inc. serves the Airport as a full service Fixed Base Operator. Atlantic
Aviation, Inc. also sells 100 low lead and Jet A fuel.

Federal Express and United Parcel Service base aircraft at the South Bend Regional
Airport. They are located in separate cargo areas. Federal Express operates their facility
on the west cargo ramp. The northeast cargo ramp is used by United Parcel Service.

The South Bend Regional Airport is a full service commercial airport categorized as a Small
Hub by the Federal Aviation Administration. It consists of two active commercial service
runways: Runway 9R/27L, which is 8,400 feet long and 150 feet wide, consisting of
concrete construction with an asphalt overlay. Runway 18/36 is 7,100 feet long and 150
feet wide and is a flexible pavement (asphalt) runway. The design aircraft for both 9R/27L
and 18/36 is the Boeing 727-200. A third runway, 9L/27R, which is 4,300 feet long and 75
feet wide, is designated for use by General Aviation aircraft up to 60,000 pounds in weight.

The Airport is served on site by an Automated Weather Observation System (AWOS).
General Aviation District Office #18 is also located at the Airport. The Air Traffic Control
Tower is operational from 6:00 a.m. to 1:00 a.m. seven days a week.

Two Thousand and Ten (2010), which marked the thirty-seventh operational year of the St.
Joseph County Airport Authority, was a productive and challenging year, and one which has
seen the continued utilization of the multi-modal terminal complex, continued physical
growth of the Airport, and continued efforts to improve air service for the South Bend area.

It is estimated that the Airport provides an economic impact to the community in excess of
$433 million per year. Based upon expected future increases in passenger traffic and
capital development, this impact should continue to grow for the foreseeable future.



ECONOMIC CONDITION — SOUTH BEND REGIONAL AIRPORT
ST. JOSEPH COUNTY

The financial outlook of the Airport is dependant upon several factors including the number
of passengers using the terminal facility, the landed weight of commercial aircraft, the
amount of general aviation aircraft activity, and the rental of land and buildings including
rentals from cargo operations.

A strong national and local economy, competitive fares, and convenient passenger services
are all important factors in the success of the Airport.

St. Joseph County was established in 1830. Its economy was once highly dependant upon
a few large manufacturing operations such as the Studebaker and Bendix Corporations.

In recent years, while there is still significant manufacturing activity by national companies
such as the AM General Hummer facility and the Honeywell Corporation, the County has
seen a shift to a much more diversified economy which now also features a large number of
service-related businesses including a regional health care industry, a thriving educational
services sector, and significant employment in the accounting and financial services
industry. The composition of the County's 6,300 businesses and workforce of almost
128,000 people closely matches that of the U.S. economy overall, thus providing a stable
local economic environment.

The County is home to the University of Notre Dame, the largest employer in the county
and one of the nation’s leading private universities, and several other private colleges:
Bethel College, Holy Cross College and Saint Mary's College. Indiana University also has a
campus in South Bend with a Purdue University extension.

The location in the county of many colleges, along with the College Football Hall of Fame
and the Studebaker National Museum in South Bend, creates a significant tourist industry,
ranking fourth in the State of Indiana for tourism revenue.

St. Joseph County has an environment conducive to new business development.

The County workforce has a level of education higher than the national average and the
cost of living in the County is significantly lower than the national average.

The County features an excellent transportation infrastructure. Interstate 80-90 transects
the County and provides significant traffic between the corridor of Chicago to Detroit and
Chicago to Cleveland and beyond.

St. Joseph County is also on the cutting edge of technology. An important development in
this area was the establishment by Project Future, the local economic development agency,
and the St. Joseph County Chamber of Commerce, of the St. Joseph Valley Metronet. This
lightning-fast loop of fiber-optic cable is more than 50 miles long. A high-speed data
hetwork with virtually limitless bandwidth, the Metronet unites local businesses, education
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and government and provides affordable access to a large number of national carriers and
internet service providers. Also, the City of South Bend, in conjunction with the University of
Notre Dame, is actively involved in becoming one of only four major nanotechnology
research and development centers in the United States. The Midwest Institute for
Nanoelectronics Discovery (MIND) aims to develop a new class of semiconductor materials
that are more advanced than today's computer chip technologies.

MAJOR AIRPORT INITIATIVES

Planned Projects

In 2010, the Airport Authority continued its land acquisition program which began in 1974. It
is primarily aimed at the relocation of Lincoln Way West, which has allowed for the
southerly extension of Runway 36 and the acquisition of up to 140 acres of land to
accommodate future aviation-refated development. The total cost of the projects, when
fully complete, will be approximately $30 million with the majority of the funding coming from
Passenger Facility Charge (PFC) revenues and the remainder coming from Airport
Improvement Program (AlIP) Funds.

In late 2010, construction was underway on a major expansion to the South Bend Regional
Airport Terminal. The project is expected to conclude by 2011.

The 45,000 square foot concourse expansion will include five (5) new gates, a dining room,
a lounge, a gift shop and a children’s rcom. This much-needed renovation will also
consolidate passenger screening operations to a single expanded location.

The $16,000,000 Terminal Expansion Project is being funded by a combination of AIP
funds and a new General Obligation Bond issue which will be repaid with PFC funds.

The Airport Authority currently has approval from the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA)
to impose a PFC charge of $3.00 per enplaning passenger. This charge will be increased to
$4.50 to accommodate the debt service requirements of the proposed bond issue.

The AIP program features 95 percent contribution administered by the Federal Aviation
Administration, 2.5 percent contributed by the State of Indiana, and 2.5 percent contributed
by the Airport Authority.

Airport Facility and Service Improvements

Two thousand and ten (2010) saw continued improvements to the airport infrastructure,
thereby increasing both the safety and functionality of the facility. All of the pavement
surfaces, except for one taxiway, have now been rehabilitated, increasing their serviceability
for the next ten to fifteen years. The airport proper is now in a position to operate for the
foreseeable future without major capital expenditures, allowing it to concentrate on the
terminal facility and improving the experiences of the traveling public at the airport.
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For 2010, the Airport presented its sixth annual Stakeholder of the Year Award to
acknowledge the contribution of Greg Sweeny to the mission of the South Bend Regicnal
Airport. In the last 28 years, Mr. Sweeny, Airports Engineer, with the Chicago District Office
of the Great Lakes Region of the Federal Aviation Administration, has been responsible for
administering 39 infrastructure grants to SBN valued in excess of $89 million.

Other 2010 activities included continued improvement to the Airport's website with a host of
new features. A major focus was placed on the improvement of taxi service to the public.
To that end, the Airport in conjunction with the Convention and Visitor's Bureau of St.
Joseph County, held Customer Service Training sessions for taxi cab drivers. A “Mystery”
rider program was also continued to reward taxi operators for good service.

Special Accomplishments

The Safety Department celebrated its thirtieth year of service as a public safety department.
The South Bend Regional Airport is fortunate to have a triple-trained department which
continues to provide aircraft and building rescue, fire fighting support, emergency medical
services, and law enforcement activities.

In 2010, the Safety Department continued to use its state-of-the-art fire training facility. The
Indiana Department of Environmental Management approved the facility, which is being
used by the Safety Department for their own training and also for local and national airport-
sponsored fire training exercises.

The Airport's Maintenance Department has fong been known for its proficiency in snow and
ice removal and continued that tradition in 2010.

The Operations Department, which was formed in 2002, continued to provide support and
coordination for the Airport. This function, which includes the monitoring of access control
systems and airfield and terminal operations, has become even more critical because of
post September 11 security concerns.

The Safety, Maintenance, and Operations Departments work closely to insure optimal
regulatory compliance including excellent ratings on yearly FAA and State inspections.

South Bend Regional Airport will continue to be involved in the Blackthorn Business Park
initiative sponsored by the City of South Bend, which will be a major force in the economic
development of the area.

Also, the Authority is proud to have completed the twenty-fourth year of operation for
Foreign Trade Zone No. 125. It has the distinction of being one of the only Zones in the
United States not contiguous to a Port of Entry. The Zone is an important economic tool for
both importers and exporters in the region. While the Airport Authority has delegated the
operation of the Zone to another entity, it continues to follow the Michiana Foreign Trade
Zone's progress with great interest.
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Employees

The following employees worked together in 2010 to further improve the image and
efficiency of the South Bend Regional Airport:

Norma E. Brown

K. Todd Burget
Richard Buzalski
Brian L. Cassady
Elizabeth M. Cecconi
Chris D. Celichowski
Joshua M. Chapo
Michael A. Clymer
Gary A, Davis
Richard K. Fields
Francis M. Flanagan
Sean Flanagan

Mitzi A. Garner

Ty H. Garton
Leonard J. Genchoff
Michael J. Gerndt
Donald E. Gilbert
Terence A. Goralski
Karen A. Gorbitz
James M. Gordon, Jr.
Charles W. Gray
Michael A. Guljas
Scott E. Hancz
Robert E. Herron, Jr.
Richard C. High
Chad Hooten

Scott A. Ingole

Hal K. James
Clifford A. Jenkins
David A. Joachim
Steven Johnson
Daniel J. Kopczynski
David Lachniet
Kerianne Linn

Bruce MacLachian
Michael J. Markiewicz
Kevin A, Matuszak

ix

Corey M. McAlvey
Brian A. McMillen
Christopher Monjeau
Michael A. Muzzey
Ronald A. Nye
Michael J. Ornat
Rosemarie Owsianowski
Jerry Paege

Kyle T. Phillips

Kevin M. Plonka
Reginald M. Sanders
John C. Schalliol
Sandra A. Schick
Kellen Shireman
Raymond M. Snider
James J. Stankiewicz
Carl S. Stopczynski
Kevin J. Szucsits
James M. Temple
Anthony Van Overberghe
Carol A. Whitteberry
Matthew L. Willis
Lauren M. Winger

Part-Time Employees:

James Miynarski
Andrew Pacely
Joshua Patterson
James Pawelski
Marcus Stankiewicz
Stephen Stopczynski
Matthew Turney
Ryan Wagley



FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Internal Control Structure and Budgetary Controls

in developing and implementing the Airport Authority's accounting system, consideration
has been given to the adequacy of internal accounting controls, designing them to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance regarding the safeguarding of assets against loss
from unauthorized use or disposition, and the reliability of financial records for preparing
financial statements and maintaining accountability for assets. The concept of reasonable
assurance recognizes that the cost of control should not exceed the benefits likely to be
derived and the evaluation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by
management.

We believe that operating within this framework; the Airport Authority's internal accounting
controls adequately safeguard assets and provide reasonable assurance of proper
recording of financial transactions.

The accounts of the Airport Authority are maintained in four main funds (Aviation,
Construction, Cumulative Building, and Bond and Interest) as required by state statute for
budgetary purposes. Annual budgets are adopted and monthly budget reports are
prepared on a cash basis. Appropriations [apse with the expiration of the budgetary period
unless encumbered by a purchase order or contract. Encumbered appropriations for
purchase orders or contracts are carried over and added to the subsequent year's budget.
For external financial reporting purposes, the Airport Authority consolidates its financial
activity into an enterprise fund which recognizes expenses when incurred. Thus, this
component unit financial report has been prepared using the accrual method of accounting.

The annual operating budget of the Airport Authority is prepared by the staff and adopted
by ordinance by the Airport Authority Board. [t is submitted to the St. Joseph County
Council and Commissioners for review and modification. The budget is then reviewed by
the State Department of Local Government Finance. Prior to adoption by the Airport
Authority Board, the budget is advertised and public hearings are conducted to obtain
taxpayer comments.

In 2010 a change was made to the Authority's policy on the capitalization of assets,
increasing the threshold for the definition of a Capital Asset from $5,000 to $20,000 in
value.

Audit Function

The records of the St. Joseph County Airport Authority are audited annually at the close of
each calendar year by the Indiana State Board of Accounts which also audits federal
projects annually. The State Board of Accounts report their findings regarding federal
projects to the Federal Aviation Administration. All financial data is available to the public.



Certificate of Achievement

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFQOA)
awarded a Certificate of Achievement For Excellence in Financial Reporting to the St.
Joseph County Airport Authority for its comprehensive annual financial report (C.A.F.R.) for
the fiscal year ended December 31, 2009. This was the twenty-first consecutive year that
the government has achieved this prestigious award.

In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government must publish an easily
readable and efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report. This report must
satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our
current Comprehensive Annual Financial Report continues to meet the Certificate of
Achievement Program’s requirements, and we are submitting it to GFOA to determine its
eligibility for another certificate.

Acknowledgments
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and auditor John Pajakowski of the Indiana State Board of Accounts for their very
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Yvonne Milligan with the City of Mishawaka who assisted in the accumulation of statistical
information for this CAFR.

Also, the preparation of this report would not have been possible without the help of the St.
Joseph County Auditor, Peter Mullin, Deputy Auditor, Cindy Bodle, and the staff at the
Auditor's office.

The Airport Authority Department of Administration and Finance deserves our sincere
appreciation for their assistance, especially Lauren Winger, Accounting Manager, for her
significant contribution to and coordination of the Management, Discussion and Analysis
and Statistical Section; Administrative Assistant, Sandy Schick, who spent many hours
processing the majority of this report; to Karen Gorbitz, Staff Accountant, for her research
work and preparing much of the data for the statistical section; and to Mitzi Garner,
Purchasing-Accounting Assistant, for her input. Other administrative staff team members
contributing to this report are: Frank Flanagan, H.R. Manager, and Kerianne Linn,
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from other Authority Departments: Elizabeth Cecconi, Michael Ornat, Bruce MacLachlan,
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Respectfully submitted,

120 Blpptef) ekl 4 Lilhes

John C. Bchalllol, A.A.E. Michael A.Guljas, A.A.E.
Executive Director Director of Administration and Flnance
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STATE OF INDIANA

302 WEST WASHINGTON STREET
ROOM E418

AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER STATE BOARD OF ACCOUNTS
INDIANAPOLIS, INDIANA 46204-2769

Telephone: (317) 232-2513
Fax: (317) 232-4711
Web Site: www.in.gov/sboa

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, SUPPLEMENTARY
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF PASSENGER FACILITY CHARGES (PFC), AND
SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

TO: THE OFFICIALS OF THE ST. JOSEPH COUNTY AIRPORT AUTHORITY,
ST. JOSEPH COUNTY, INDIANA

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the St. Joseph County Airport
Authority (Airport Authority), as of and for the year ended December 31, 2010. These financial state-
ments are the responsibility of the Airport Authority's management. Our responsibility is to express
opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a
basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control over reporting. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that
our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the Airport Authority as of December 31, 2010, and the respective changes in
financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof and for the year ended, in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated May
12, 2011, on our consideration of the Airport Authority's internal control over financial reporting and our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements, and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing and not to provide an opinion on the internal
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of
our audit.




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, SUPPLEMENTARY
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF PASSENGER FACILITY CHARGES (PFC), AND
SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
(Continued)

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Airport Authority's basic financial statements. The accompanying Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by the U.S.
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations, and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our
opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a

whole.

The Management's Discussion and Analysis and Schedule of Funding Progress, as listed in the
Table of Contents, are not required parts of the basic financial statements but are supplementary informa-
tion required by the accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, We have
applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inguiries of management regarding the
methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did
not audit the information and express no opinion on it,

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the St. Joseph County Airport Authority's basic financial statements. The intro-
ductory section, statistical tables, the Budgetary Comparison Schedules, Budget/GAAP Reconciliation,
and the Schedule of Expenditures of Passenger Facility Charges are presented for purposes of additional
analysis and are not required parts of the basic financial statements. The Schedule of Expenditures of
Passenger Facility Charges, the Budgetary Comparison Schedules, and the Budget/GAAP Reconcili-
ation, have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial state-
ments and, in our opinion, are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial state-
ments. The introductory section and statistical tables have not been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

STATE BOARD OF ACCOUNTS

May 12, 2011 Sttt f—-‘—-e/% M



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

This Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) provides an introduction to the major aclivities
affecting the operations of the South Bend Airport and an introduction and overview of the financial
performance and statements of the St. Joseph County Airport Authority (Authority) for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 2010. The information contained in this MD&A should be considered in
conjunction with the information contained in the Letter of Transmitfal included in the introduction
Section and various historical summaries of activilies and financial performance included in the
Statistical and Compliance Sections of this report.

Foliowing this MD&A are the basic financial statements of the Authority together with the notes
thereto, which are essential to a full understanding of the data contained in the financial
statements. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this Section
also presents certain Required Supplementary Information (R.S.L} including the Authority’s
funding progress to support its obligation to provide pension benefits to our employees through the
indiana Public Employees' Retirement Fund (P.E.R.F.). The R.S.l. is followed by Supplemental
Financial Information, which includes budgetary comparison schedules, a reconciliation of our
budget to Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (G.A.A.P.), and a schedule of expenditures of

Passenger Facilities Charges.,

AIRPORT ACTIVITIES & HIGHLIGHTS

As of December 31, 2010, the South Bend Airport provided non-stop air passenger service to ten
(10) hubs in the United States: Chicago O'Hare, Las Vegas, Cleveland, Detroit, Cincinnati, Mesa,
Atlanta, Sanford/Orlando, Tampa Bay, and Minneapolis. Four major passenger carriers (Allegiant,
Continental, Delta, and United) are all represented either by the carrier itself or through a regional
partner. in some cases, more than one company contracted with the national carrier for this
purpose.

in addition, thanks to the multi-modal nature of the Airport, the facility continues o house the South
Shore inter-urban electric rail service, which provides travel between South Bend and downtown
Chicago. Also, several interstate bus lines operate with the Airport as a terminus, including Coach
USA (service to Chicago airports) and Greyhound Bus Lines (nationwide).

In 2010, many small airports nationwide were impacted by the downturn in the economy and the
struggling airline industry. However, South Bend's 2010 total enplanements and deplanements
reflected an increase of 0.24 percent versus 2009.

As part of its effort to improve air service, the Airport continued its proactive policy of working with
existing and potential carriers to explore additional hub opportunities in both the east and
southwest. (The Executive Director, working closely with an air service consultant, made
numerous contacts, and submitted proposals throughout the year to both established and start-up
airlines.) Also, in 2010 a Director of Marketing and Development was hired. This newly created
position was intended to focus on not only air service development, but also to increase awareness
of the Airport's services to our community and surrounding areas.

In 2005, Allegiant Air inaugurated non-stop service to Las Vegas and Sanford/Orlando, Florida.
This was followed by the successful initiation of non-stop service in 2006 to the Tampa Bay,
Florida area by the carrier. Allegiant's passenger growth continued in 2010 when it expanded its
air service to include non-stop flights to Phoenix/Mesa.



Although total aircraft flight operations were down in 2010, the airlines operated higher passenger
loads per flight. Also due to interest in the University of Notre Dame’s football program, most
carriers operated at full capacity on home game weekends. The airport experienced a turnaround
in passenger fraffic in the fourth quarter of 2010, which is expected to continue.

South Bend offers a lower than average rate structure to the airlines, thus making the airport an
attractive choice from a cost standpoint. We believe that from a passenger standpoint the added
convenience of using the less congested facilites of a smaller airport during this period of
enhanced security, plus competitive fares and the savings on time, gas, parking, and tolls
compared to some larger neighboring airports, will place South Bend in an increasingly favorable
position in the national airport system in the future.

The South Shore rail passenger service experienced a decrease of 10 percent in 2010 partially
due to service outages on some weekends while construction improvements were completed.
Although traffic was down in 2010, low rail fares, high gasoline prices for auto travel, and the
convenience of service to downtown Chicago were seen as the major reasons for continued
interest in this service,

Also, Coach USA’s passenger count increased by 18.22 percent compared to the 2009 levels.

Another important component of business at the Airport is airfreight. United Parcel Service and
Federal Express base aircraft at the facility and also maintained regional sorting facilities on site.
Total cargo tonnage increased 11.78 percent in 2010 compared to 2009.

Finally, a review of our facilities would not be complete without a mention of our general aviation
facilities. Fifty-five privately or corporate-owned aircraft were based in South Bend in 2010 along
with a full service fixed base operator (F.B.O.) (Atlantic Aviation). General Aviation activities
represented the majority of operations at the Airport. The availability of a first-class General
Aviation Facility is a key factor in drawing new business to a community.



COMPARATIVE INFORMATION ON TRANSPORTATION SERVICES AT THE
SOUTH BEND AIRPORT 2010 VERSUS 2009

Total Airline Passengers
{Enplaned and Deplaned)

Weekday Arrivals and Departures
Weekday Total Available Seats
Total Cargo (Lbs.)

Alrcraft Operations
(Take Off and Landing)

Air Carriers
Freight

General Aviation
Total Operations

Total Landed Weight

Commuter Bus Passengers

Train Passengers

Total Air, Bus, Rail Passengers

South Bend is fortunate to have so many air transportation choices.
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15,720
1,526
19,782
37,028
489,534,337
27,296
285,435

937,808

Variance

0.24%

-5.00%
-3.56%

11.78%

Variance

-6.90%
-11.27%
-11.51%

-9.54%

-3.45%

18.22%
-10.00%

-2.35%

As the comparative

demonstrates, no one carrier dominates our market. At some other small airports, which

feature fewer carriers, the loss of one provider can be significant.

South Bend ranks in the

top 20 percent of small airports based upon the number of cities served with non-stop flights.



Allegiant
Continental
Delta
United

AIRLINE MARKET SHARE

Enplanements
2010

United
- \ 25.4%
P ‘\.\\
N
Allegiant
20.6%
Continental
4.6%

Airline Market Share Comparison

2010 2009 Difference Change %
64,950 62,748 2,202 3.51%
14,443 21,400 (6,957) -32.51%

155,627 155,339 288 0.19%
80,061 75,258 4,803 6.38%

315,081 314,745 336

0.11%




FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

NET ASSETS

Total Assets decreased in 2010 by $4.4 million or 4.32 percent over 2009. The decrease
resulted primarily from an intergovernmental transfer of a Capital Asset.

Unrestricted Current Assets decreased by 15.37 percent. The main component of this
change was expenditures for the Terminal Expansion Project.

Total Liabilities decreased by 3.63 percent compared to 2009 reflecting a reduction in
long term debt.

Net Assets decreased by $3.9 miltion or 4.42 percent.

NET ASSETS
ASSETS 201 200
Current and Other Assets $ 12,126,973 $ 13,617,853
Capital Assets 85,054,341 87,949,765
Total Assets 97,181,314 101,567,618
LIABILITIES
Long-Term Liabilities Outstanding 10,881,375 11,544,238
Other Liabilities 2,044,478 1,868,825
Total Liabilities 12,925,853 13,413,163
NET ASSETS
Invested in Capital Assets, 76,503,028 78,662,042
Net of Related Debt
Restricted 3,582,959 3,675,234
Unrestricted 4,169 474 5,817,179
Total Net Assets $ 84,255,461 $ 88,154,455
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REVENUE

Total Revenue increased by 1.0 percent, not including grants.
Total Operating Revenue increased by 2.26 percent compared to 2009 levels.

Airport Service Revenue increased by 1.68 percent and consisted of Airfield, Terminal,
Concessions, Parking, Fixed Base Operations, and Building and Land Rental Revenues.

The Airfield Category, which was composed primarily of landing fees ($.99 per thousand pounds
of aircraft landed weight) and fuel flowage fees, increased by .57 percent.

Terminal Rental Revenue received from the airlines increased by 0.50 percent in 2010.

Terminal Non-Aviation Rental Revenue decreased by 14.12 percent due to the loss of several
tenants in the building.

Concession Revenue increased by 1.15 percent and Parking Revenue increased by 8.32
percent. Concession and Parking Revenue are based primarily on the number of passengers
utitizing the Airport. The Parking Revenue increase also reflects a rate increase in 2010.

Fixed Base Operation Revenue, a component of General Aviation activity, increased .43
percent due to an increase in rates. Other building and land rental on the airfield decreased by
24.23 percent. This was the result of a decrease in recycling revenue compared to 2009.

Other Operating Revenues for 2010 were mostly derived from a grant which reimbursed the
Authority for providing Law Enforcement Officer Presence at the screening checkpoints.

Non-Operating Revenues decreased by 1.06 percent. The combination of Property and Other
Taxes increased by 2.2 percent,

interest Revenue decreased by 74.92 percent due to lower rates and the need fo maintain
liquidity for the Terminal Expansion project.

Property Management revenue decreased by 16.73 percent due to lower occupancy in an
Authority owned building.

Capital Contributions increased due to the receipt of Airport Improvement Program (A.|.P.)
grants for the construction of the Terminal Expansion project.

Passenger Facility Charge Revenues increased in 2010 by 1.85 percent, as an offshoot of
slightly higher passenger traffic,
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EXPENSES AND INCOME

Total Expenses decreased in 2010 by 1.82 percent compared to 2009.

Personnel Seivices increased by 1.65 percent in 2010, due in part to the hiring of a Director of
Marketing and Development. This was a newly created position.

In 2010, the Supplies Category decreased by 27.44 percent, while Other Services and Charges
also decreased by 32.50 percent due in part to Capital Assets being reclassified as expenses in

2009,

Also in 2010, the airport was involved in broad ranging cost cutting initiatives. Replacement
schedules for equipment and vehicles were revised. Service Contracts were re-evaluated.
Changes were made in HVAC systems to save on utility costs and marketing and air service
expenditures to consultants were curtailed,

Property Management Expense decreased by 13.44 percent in 2010 due to fewer repairs to an
office building owned by the Authority.

An intergovernmental transfer of a road in addition to a change in accounting policy increasing
the threshold for the definition of a Capital Asset from $5,000 to $20,000 and a resuiting write off
of Capital Assets were the leading contributing factors to the $3.9 million decrease in Net

Assets,
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Operating Expenses

$6,000,000

$5,000,000

$4,000,000

$3,000,000 -

$2,000,000 -

$1,000,000

$_ =
Personal Services Supplies Other Services Depreciation

2010 and Charges
m2009

Operating Expenses

Depreciation

33% Personal
Services
43%
Other Services i
and Charges Supplies

19% 5%

13




SUMMARY OF OPERATIONS AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

tncrease/{Decrease)
2010 2009 Amouni Percent
Operating Revenues
Adrport Service Revenues
Airfield 5 605,210 § 601,768 § 3,442 0.57
Terminal - Aviation 1,225,171 1,219,103 6,068 0.50
Terminal - Nonaviation 111,226 129,513 {18,287} (14.12)
Concessions 1,069,131 1,056,991 12,140 .15
Parking 2,207,040 2,037,467 169,573 8.32
Fixed Based Operations 408,748 407,000 1,748 0.43
Building and Land Ren 243,613 321,511 (77.898) (24.23)
Adrpont Service Revenues - Total 5,870,139 5,773,353 96,788 1.68
Operating Grants 148,565 113,728 34,837 30.63
Other 12,039 10,618 1,420 13.37
Total Operating Revenue: 6,030,743 5,897,700 133,043 2.26
Operating Expenses
Personal Services 4,884,509 4,810,162 74,347 1.55
Supplies 586,715 808,565 {221,850 (27.44)
Other Services and Charges 2,116,189 3,134,908 (1,018,709) (32.50)
Depreciation 3,667,220 3,630,659 36,561 1.01
Total Operating Expense: 11,254 643 12,384,294 (1,129,651) (9.12)
Operating Loss (5,223,900) (6,486,594) (996,608} (19.47)
Non-Operating Revenues
Property Taxes 2,997,689 2,702,107 295,582 10.94
Other Tax Distributions 620,426 836,637 (216,211) (25.84)
Interest and Investment Revenue 15,517 61,882 (46,365) (74.92)
Property Management Revenue 273,942 328,987 (55,045) (16.73)
Other Revenue 101,332 122,378 {21,046) (17.20)
Total Non-Operating Revenue: 4,008,806 4,051,991 {43,085) {1.05)
Non-Operating Expenses
Interest Expense 614,347 675,362 {61,015) {9.03)
Property Management Expense 222 493 257,044 (34,651} {13.44)
Loss on Change in Capital Asset Policy 580,321 - 890,321 -
Loss on Disposal of Capital Assets 392,349 - 352,349 -
Amortization Expenst 14,628 14,628 - -
Total Non-Operating Expense: 1,834,138 947,034 887,104 93.67
Loss Before Confributions (3,049.132) (3.381,637) 332,505 {9.83)
Capital Contributions 7,313,647 720,700 6,592,947 914.80
Passenger Facility Charge Revenue 835,884 820,664 15,220 1.85
Capital Assets Donated to County Governmer (8,999 383) - (8,989,393} -
Change in Net Assets (3,898,884) {1,840.273) _ (2,058,721} 111.87
Total Net Assets - Beginning 88,154,455 89,994,728 (1,840,273) (2.04)
Total Net Assets - Ending $ 84255461 $ 88,154,455 (3,898,994} (4.42)
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SUMMARY OF CASH FLOW ACTIVITIES

The following is a summary of the major sources and uses of cash and cash equivalents for the
past two years.

2010 2009

Cash Flows

Operating Activities $ (1,514,254) $ (1,885,682)

Non-Capital Financing Activities 3,451,289 5,713,014

Capital and Related Financing

Activities (5,359,430) {3,460,481)

Investing Activities 15,517 61,882
Net increase (Decrease) in

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ (3,406,878) $ 428,733
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Beginning of Year 12,208,209 11,779,476

End of Year $ 8,801,331 $ 12,208,209

The Authority's available Cash and Cash Equivalents decreased from $12.2 million at the end of
2009 to $8.8 million at the end of 2010 due primarily to the usage of funds for the acquisition
and construction of Capital Assets. The $8.8 million is composed of $2.2 million available for
unrestricted operations and $6.6 million, which is restricted for capital projects and future Debt
Service payments.

CAPITAL ACQUISITIONS AND CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES

CAPITAL ASSETS

The St. Joseph County Airport Authority's investment in Capital Assets as of December 31,
2010, was $85 million (net of Accumulated Depreciation). This investment in Capital Assets
includes land, buildings, roadways, airfield and equipment. The total decrease in the §t. Joseph
County Airport Authority’s investment in Capital Assets for the current fiscal year was 3.29
percent.
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Major Capital Asset events during the current fiscal year included the following:

During 2010, the Airport Authorily District expended $9.9 million for major capital activities. This
includes $500 thousand for fand and easement acquisitions in the south approach to the North
South Runway 18/36, $9.1 million for planning and architectural fees and construction of the
Terminal Expansion and $300 thousand for the purchase of a new access control system.

Capital Asset acquisitions are capitalized at cost. Acquisitions are funded using a variety of
financing mechanisms, including federal granis with matching state grants and Airport funds,
property taxes, debt issuances, and Airport revenues. Additional information on the Authority's
Capital Assets and commitments can be found in the Notes to the Financial Statements in
Section I{l C and D.

PASSENGER FACILITY CHARGE (P.F.C.)

Effective November 1, 1994, a Passenger Facility Charge (P.F.C.) of $3.00 per enplaned
passenger was implemented by the approval of the Federal Aviation Administration {FAA) and
the St. Joseph County Airport Authority. The receipts are intended to be used to repay the debt
service on the 2002 Bond issue, and for any other purposes allowed by the FAA and the Airport
Authority Board. The St. Joseph County Airport Authority is authorized to receive a maximum of
$34,156,074. As of December 31, 2010, the Airport Authority had received a total of
$17,900,986. For further details, please refer to the Schedule of Expenditures of Passenger
Facility Charges, which is included later in this financial section.
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LONG-TERM DEBT AND CREDIT RATINGS

The Airport Authority had $10,775,000 in outstanding long-term debt plus $675 thousand in
outstanding Short-Term Debt as of December 31, 2010. Long-term and short-term debt
consisted of General Obligation Bonds sold in 2002. The 2002 Bonds ($15 million) mature
in 2022 and interest rates range from 3 percent to 5.25 percent. Both principal and interest
are payable from the revenues derived from the proceeds of an approved Passenger Facility
Charge (P.F.C.) on each enplanement at South Bend Regional Airport. A 1998 Bond
($7,155,000) was payable from revenue derived from property taxes. This Bond matured in
2010 and interest rates ranged from 4.4 percent to 4.5 percent.

The General Obligation debt limit for the Airport Authority is 2 percent of the adjusted value
of taxable property in St. Joseph County. Per Indiana Statute, the adjusted value is defined
as being equal to one third (1/3) of the actual valuation of property in the County. The
current adjusted value is $2,805,590,588. The debt limit is $56,111,812, and the total
outstanding General Obligation debt is $11,450,000.

The Authority’s General Obligation Debt is rated A1 by Moody’s Investor Service. Moody's
opinion stated that while their firm maintains a negative outlook on the ‘airport sector, the
rating for South Bend reflects the general obligation security for these bonds. Also noted
was the fact that the Authority benefits from a relatively diverse revenue stream including
parking, terminal revenues, concessions, and general property taxes. Details regarding
long-term debt are included in the Notes to the Financial Statements in Section Il E.1.

Total Debt Outstanding
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REQUEST FOR INFORMATION

This Comprehensive Annual Financial Report is designed to provide detailed information on the
Authority’s operations and to all of those with an interest in the Authority’s financial affairs. Questions
concerning any of the information provided in this report or any request for additional information
should be addressed to the Chief Financial Officer by e-mail (mikeg@sbnair.com)

This report may be downloaded from: http://www.flysbn.com

Michael A. Guljas, A.A.E. %
Chief Financial Officer
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ST. JOSEPH COUNTY AIRPORT AUTHORITY

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
December 3%, 2010
Assets
Current assels:
Unrestricted:
Cash and cash equivalents § 2,238,095
Accounts receivable (net of aliowance} 572,602
Taxes receivable 365,519
Intergovermnmental receivable 1,797,906
Prepaid items 100,525
Other current assats 43,647
Total unrestricted cument assets 5,116,594
Restricted:
Cash arxi cash equivalents:
Censtruction fund 2,621,868
Passenger faghty charge fund 1,917,293
Bond and interest fund 534,027
Cumulative building fund 902,854
Rainy day fund 278 861
Cash with fiscal agent 285,705
Cther funds 44,593
Accounts receivable - passenger faciity charge 103,842
Taxas receivable 124,938
Total restricted current assels 5,724,016
Total current assets 11.810.610
Noncurrent assets:
Unrestricted:
Net pension asset 118.780
Restricted:
Deferred charges 69,573
Capital assels:
Land, improvements to land and construction in progress 38.673,330
Cthar capital assets {net of accumulated deprediaton) 46,381,011
Tolal capital assets 85,054,341
Total noncurrent assats 85270,704
Total assets 97,181,314
Liabifities
Currant habities:
Unrestricted:
Accounts payable 104,881
Accrued payrell payable 112,859
Taxes payabie 2421
Compensated absences 207,169
Conlracis payable 450,670
Retainage payabie 461,132
COther current Fabilitias 51,146
Total unrestricted current liabifites 1,369,478
Reslricted:
General obigation bonds payable 875000
Tota! current liabities 2,044,478
Noncurrent Fabitties:
Unrestricted:
Cempensated absences 228,128
Cther postemployment benefits payabis 55,463
Tolal unrestricted nencurrent liabiktes 283 591
Restricted:
General obigation bonds payable (net of unamostized discounts) 10,597,784
Totat noncurrent Eabisties 10,881,375
Total liabiites 12,925,853
invested in capital assets, nat of retated debt 76,503,028
Restricled for debt service 2,653,237
Restricted for capital assets 629,722
Unvestricted 4,169,474
Total net assets $ 84,255,461

The notes to the financial statements are an ntegral part of this statement,
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ST. JOSEPH COUNTY AIRPORT AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES (N FUND NET ASSETS
As Of And For The Year Ended December 31, 2010

Qperaling revenues:

Airfield H] 605,210
Terminal - aviation 1,225,171
Terminal - nanaviation 111,226
Concessions 1,069,134
Parking 2,207,040
Fixed based operations 408,748
Building and land rent 243,613
Qperaling grant 148,565
Other 12,039
Total operating revenues 6,030,743
COperating expenses:
Personal services 4,884,509
Supplies 586,715
Other services and charges 2,116,199
Depreciation 3,667,220
Total operating expenses 11,254,643
Operating foss (5,223,900)
Nenoperating revenues:
Propeny taxes 2,997,689
Other tax distribwlions 620,426
Interest and investment revenue 16,617
Propeity management revenue 273,942
Other revenue 101,332
Tolai noncperating revenues 4,008,808
Nonoperating expenses:
Interest expense 614,347
Property management expense 222,493
Loss on change in capital asset policy 590,324
Loss on disposal of capital assets 392,349
Amortization expense 14,628
Total nonoperating expenses 1,834,138
Loss befere contributions (3.042,132)
Capital contributions 7,313,647
Passenger facility charge revenue 835,884
Capitat assets donated to county government {8.999,293)
Change in net assets (3.898,884)
Total net assets - beginning 88,154,455
Total net assets - ending § B4.255461

The notes to the financial stalements are an integral part of this statement.
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ST. JOSEPH COUNTY AIRPORT AUTHCRITY
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
ENTERPRISE FUNDS
As Of And For The Year Ended December 31, 2010

Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from custorers and users
Payments to suppliers and contractors
Paymenis to employees
Other nonoperating activity

Net cash used by operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities;
Peoperty management activity
Property and county income taxes

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Passenger facility charges
Capital contributions
Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Principal paid on capital debt
Interest paid on capital debt

Net cash used by capital and related financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Inierest received

Net decrease in cash and ¢cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, January 1

Cash and ¢ash equivalents, Decamber 31

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash used by operating aclivities:
Operating loss

Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash used by operating activities:
Depreciation expense
Work in progress items expensed
Net nonoperating receipls (expenses}
{Increase) decrease in assels:
Accounis receivable
Prepaid items
Intergovernmental receivable
Net pension assets
Increase (decrease) in liabiliies:
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll payable
Compensated absence payable
Taxes payable

Total adjustiments
Net cash used by operating activities
Noncash investing, capital and financing activities:
Disposal of capital assets

Donation of capital assets to other governmental agencies
Capital assets acquired on account

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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(3.406,878)

12,208,209

$ 8801331
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ST. JOSEPH COUNTY AIRPORT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

A. Reporing Entity

The St. Joseph County Airport Authority (Airport Authority) was established August 1, 1973, by
the St. Joseph County Council under the provisions of Indiana Code 18-6-3.5, which has been
recodified as Indiana Code 8-22-3. The Airport Authority operates under the direction of a four-
member board which is appointed by the Board of County Commissioners of St, Joseph County,
an elected board.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that these basic
financial statements present the Airport Authority and its significant component units. There are
no significant component units which require inclusion. The Airport Authority is a component unit
of 5t. Joseph County. A financial benefithurden refationship exists between the County and the
Airport Authority,

Fund Financial Statements

Enterprise fund financial statements (i.e., the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of
Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets) report information on all of the Airport
Authority's activities. Governmentat activities, which are normally supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a
significant extent on fees and charges for support. The Airport Authority only has business-type
activities.

. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

The Airport Authority is reported as an enterprise fund. The fund is accounted for using the
capital maintenance (economic resources) measurement focus and the accrual basis of ac-
counting. All assets and liabilities (whether current or noncurrent) associated with its activily are
included on the Airport Authority's Statement of Net Assets. Its operating statement represents
increases (revenue) and decreases (expenses) in total net assets. Revenues are recorded when
earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of the
related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized in the year for which they are levied. Grants
and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by
the provider have been met.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989,
generally are followed in the enterprise fund statements to the extent that those standards do not
conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. Govern-
ments also have the option of following subsequent private-sector guidance for their enterprise
funds, subject to this same limitation. The Authority has elected not to follow subsequent private-
sector guidance.

Enterprise funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating tems and other
items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing
and delivering goods in connection with an enterprise fund's principal ongoing operations. The
principal operating revenues of the enterprise funds are charges to customers for sales and
services. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services, ad-
ministrative costs, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting
this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses or other items and separately
stated on the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets.
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When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, the Airport Authority's
policy is to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

D. Assels, Liabilities and Net Assets

1.

Deposits and investments

Deposits, made in accordance with Indiana Code 5-13, with financial insfituticns in the State
of Indiana at year end were entirely insured by the Federal Depository Insurance Corporation
or by the Indiana Public Deposit Insurance Fund. This includes any deposit accounts issued
or offered by a qualifying financial institution.

The Autherity's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand
deposits, and short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the
date of acquisition.

Property Taxes

Property taxes ievied are collected by the County Treasurer and are distributed to the Airport
Authority in June and in December. State statute (IC 8-1.1-17-18) requires the Indiana
Department of Local Government Finance to establish property tax rates and levies by
February 15. These rates were based upon the preceding year's March 1 (lien date)
assessed valuations adjusted for various tax credits. Taxable property is assessed at 100
percent of the true tax value (determined in accordance with rules and regulations adoptad by
the Indiana Department of Local Government Finance). Taxes may be paid in two equal in-
stallments which become delinguent if not paid by May 10 and November 10, respectively.
All property taxes collected by the County Treasurer and available for distribution were dis-
tributed to the School Corporation on or prior to December 31 of the year collected. Delin-
quent property taxes outstanding at year end, net of allowance for uncollectible accounts, are
recorded as a receivable with an offset to unearned revenue since the amounts are not
considered available.

Prepaid items

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are
recorded as prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements.

Restricted Assets
Certain proceeds of the enterprise fund revenue bonds, as well as certain resources set
aside for their repayment, are classified as restricted assets on the statement of net assets

balance sheet because their use is limited by applicable bond indentures, state or federal
law, or governing body action.

The financial statements report $3,582,959 of restricted net assets, all of which is restricted
by enabling legisiation.

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (i.e., road,
bridges, sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable financial statements.

23



ST. JOSEPH COUNTY AIRPORT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Continued)

Capital assets are reported at actual or estimated historical cost based on appraisals or
deflated current replacement cost. Contributed or donated assets are reported at estimated
fair value at the time received.

Capitalization thresholds (the dollar values above which asset acquisitions are added to the
capital asset accounts), depreciation metheds and estimated useful lives of capital assets are
as follows:

Capitalization Depreciation Estimated

Threshold Method Useful Life
Buildings and improvements $ 20,000 Straight-line 10 to 40 years
Airfield 20,000 Straight-line 15 to 20 years
Equipment 20,000 Straight-line 3to 10 years

For depreciated assets, the cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the
value of the asset or materially extend asset lives are not capitalized.

Major outtays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are con-
structed. Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type
activities is included as part of the capitalized value of the assets constructed.

Compensated Absences

a. Sick Leave — Airport Authority employees working 8-hour shifts earn sick leave at the rate
of 48 hours per year. Employees working 24-hour shifts have the same benefits as
employees working 8-hour shifts but earn 72 hours per year, Employees working 8-hour
shifts may accumulate a maximum of 720 hours of sick leave. Employees working 24-
hour shifts may accumulate a maximum of 1,080 hours of sick leave. Employees have
the opportunity at the beginning of each calendar year to reoll that year's earned sick leave
into their accumulated balance, to get paid for those earned hours in advance at their
current rate of pay, or to split their earned sick leave time between the two options. At
the termination of employment, employees are paid at their current rate of pay for a
percentage of their accumulated sick leave. This percentage is based on the number of
years of service and whether or not the termination of employment is a retirement.

p. Vacation Leave —~ Airport Authority employees working 8-hour shifts earn vacation leave
at rates from 80 to 160 hours per year based upon their number of years of service.
Employees working 24-hour shifts have the same benefits as employees working 8-hour
shifts but earn from 112 to 288 hours vacation leave per year. Vacation leave does not
accumulate from year to year.

Vacation and sick leave is accrued when incurred.

Long-Term Obligations

Long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the Statement of
Net Assets. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and
amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight-line method. Bonds payable are

reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are reported
as deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related debt.
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8. Equily Classification
Equily is classified as net assets and displayed in two components:
a. Restricted net assets — Consists of net assets with constraints placed on the use either
by (1) external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws and regulations of
other governments, or (2) law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

b. Unrestricted net assets — All other net assets that do not meet the definition of
"rastricted.”

it is the Airport Authority's policy to first use restricted net assets prior to the use of unre-
stricted net assets when a disbursement is incurred for purposes for which both restricted
and unrestricted net assets are available,
E. Receipts and Disbursements
Operating receipts and disbursements for the Airport Authority result from providing services and

producing and delivering goods and/or services. They also include all receipts and disburse-
ments not related to capital and related financing, noncapital financing, or investing activities.

Stewardship, Compliance and Accountability

Budgetary Information

Annual budgets are adopted on the cash basis, which is not consistent with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. All annual appropriations lapse at calendar year
end.

The Executive Director of the Airport Authority submits to the County Council a proposed operating
budget for the year commencing the following January 1. Prior to adoption, the budget is advertised
and public hearings are conducted by the Airport Authority to obtain taxpayer comments. in October
of each year, the Airport Authority, through the passage of an ordinance, approves the budget for the
next year. Copies of the budget ordinance and the advertisement for funds for which property taxes
are levied are sent to the Indiana Department of Local Government Finance. The budget becomes
legally enacted after the Executive Director of the Airport Authority receives approval of the Indiana
Depariment of Local Government Finance.

The Airport Authority's management cannot transfer budget appropriations between object classifica-
tions of a budget without approval of the Airport Authority board. The Indiana Department of Local
Government Finance must approve any revisions to the appropriations for any fund or any depart-
ment of the Airport Authority. The legal level of budgetary control is by object and department within
the fund for the Airport Authority.
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Detailed Notes on All Funds

A. Deposits

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the government's deposits may
not be returned to it. Indiana Code 5-13-8-1 allows a political subdivision of the State of Indiana
fo deposit public funds in a financial institution only if the financial institulion is a depository
eligible to receive state funds and has a principal office or branch that qualifies to receive public
funds of the political subdivision. The Airport Authority does not have a deposit policy for
custodial credit risk. At December 31, 2010, the Airport Authority had deposit balances in the
amount of $8,801,331. This entire balance was not exposed to custodial credit risk.

The bank balances were insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or the Public
Deposit Insurance Fund, which covers alf public funds held in approved depositories.

Receivables

The Airport Authority recognizes $26,700 in an allowance account for the expected uncollectibility
of payments due from airlines due to bankruptcy proceedings.

Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2010, was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Business-typa activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land $ 34,349,460 § 1,181,539 $ - § 35,530,999
Land improvements, nonaviation 8,999,393 - 8,999,393 -
Construction in progress 2,050,013 10,318,269 9,225,951 3,142,331
Total capital assets, not being depreciated 45,398,866 11,499,808 18,225,344 38,673,330
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buitdings 42,871,145 8,480,002 1,711,298 49,639,849
Airfield 41,531,353 - 539,708 40,991,645
Equipment 10,523,800 - 1,807,802 8,715,998
Total capital assets, being depreciated 94,926,268 8,480,002 4,058,808 99,347,492
Less accurnulated depreciation for:
Buildings 20,783,968 1,273,229 1,132,835 20,924,362
Airfield 25,015,202 1,681,555 400,046 28,296,711
Equipment 6,676,229 712,438 1,643,257 5,745,408
Totals 52,375,399 3,667,220 3,076,138 52,966,481
Total capital assels, being depreciated, net 42,550,899 4,812,782 982,670 46,381,011
Total business-type activities capital assets, net $ 87,949,765 3 16,312,590 $ 19,208,014 $ 85,054,341
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During 2010, the Airport Authority changed the capitalization threshold from $5,000 to $20,000.
This resuited in the removal from capital asset records of $2,433,482 in historical cost of capital
assets, The residual book value of $590,321 was included in nhonoperating expense.,

D. Construction Commitments

Construction work in progress is composed of the following:

Total Expended to
Project December 31,
Project Authorized 2010 Committed

Relocation of Lincoln Way West - Phasell $ 5,300,000 $ 414,314 $ 4,885,886

Terminal Expansion - Phase I, Il 7,544,536 2,627,881 5,016,655
Other Projects 500,000 200,136 299,864
Totals $ 13,344,536 $ 3,142,331 $ 10,202,205

E. Long-Term Lfabilities
1. General Obligation Bonds

The Airport Authority issues general obligation bonds to be paid by income derived from a
passenger facility charge (Note IV.D.) and a tax levy io pay debt service. These general
obligation bonds are to provide funds for the acquisition and construction of major capital
facilities or assets.

Generat obligation bonds are direct obligations and pledge the full faith and credit of the
Airport Authority. The general obligation bonds, used for north-south runway expansion, are
payable in annual installments between $1,217,050 and $1,391,362. Annual bond maturities
range between $675,000 and $1,300,000. General obligation bonds currently outstanding at
year end are as follows:

Less: Net
Interest Original Balance at  Unamortized Bornds
Purpose Rates Issue December 31 Discount Outstanding

2002 General obligationbonds  4.1% t05.25% $ 15,000,000 3 11,450,000 $ 177,216 § 11,272,784

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for general obligation bonds are as follows:
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Principal Interest
2011 $ 675000 $ 545,500
2012 700,000 517,050
2013 775,000 486,944
2014 800,000 452,025
2015 825,000 416,225
2016-2020 5,100,000 1,404,504
2021-2022 2,575,000 167,063
Totals $ 11,450,000 $ 3,989,401

2. Changes in Long-Term Liabiities

Long-term liability activity for the year ended December 31, 2010, was as follows:

Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year
Business-type actidties:
General obligation bonds $ 12,695,000 $ - % 1,245000 § 11,450,000 & 675,000
Compensated absences 433,193 204,622 202,518 435,297 207,169
Totals $ 13,128,193 $ 204,622 $ 1,447,518 % 11,885287 $§ 882,169

Compensated absences for the Airport Authority typically have been liquidated from the
Aviation Fund.

IV. Other Information
A. Risk Management

The Airport Authority is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; job related ilinesses or injuries to employees, medical
benefits to employees, retirees, and dependents (excluding postemployment benefits); and
natural disasters.

The risks of torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; job related
illnesses or injuries to employees, medical benefits to employees, retirees, and dependents
(excluding postemployment benefits); and natural disasters are covered by commercial insurance
from independent third parties. Settled claims from these risks have not exceeded commercial
insurance coverage for the past three years. There were no significant reductions in insurance by
major category of risk.
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B. Other Postemployment Benefits

Single-Employer Defined Benefit Healthcare Plan

Plan Description

St Joseph County Airport Authority Healthcare Plan is a single-employer defined benefit heaith-
care plan administered by Anthem Insurance. The plan provides medical insurance benefits to
eligible retirees and their spouses/dependents. Indiana Code 5-10-8 assigns the authority to
establish and amend benefit provisions to the Airport Authority.

The St. Joseph County Airport Authority Healthcare Plan does not issue a publicly available
financial report.

Funding Policy

The contribution requirements of plan members for the St. Joseph County Airport Authority
Healthcare Plan are established by the Airport Authorily Board. Currently, retirees are required to
pay 100 percent of the monthly premium for medical insurance. Retiree health coverage is
implicitiy more expensive than active health coverage. This higher cost of coverage creates a
liability that the Airport pays in higher premiums for current employees' coverage. The amount of
the higher cost of coverage has not been determined. Calculated required contributions are
based on projected pay-as-you-go financing requirements. For the year ended December 31,
2010, the Airport contributed $0 to the plan.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation

The Airport Authority's annual other postemployment benefit (OPEB) cost {(expense) is calculated
based on the annual required contribution {ARC) of the employer, an amount actuarially deter-
mined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 45. The ARC represents a level of
funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and
amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed 30
years. The following table shows the components of the Airport Authority's annual OPEB cost for
the year 2009, the most recent actuarial study the Airport has determined, the amount actually
contributed to the plan for 2009, and changes in the Airport Authority's net OPEB obligation to the
plan:

Annual required contribution $ 28,617
Interest on net OPEB obligation 1,205
Adjustment to annual required contribution (1,142}
Annual OPEB cost 28,680

Contributions made -

Increase (decrease) in net OPEB obligation 28,680
Net OPEB obligation, beginning of year 26,783
Net OPEB obligation, end of year $ 55,463
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The Airport Authority has accepted and recorded this calcutated liability for December 31, 2009,
and in the absence of a more recent determined liability, has chosen to reflect this as their
December 31, 2010 liability.

The Airport Authority's 2009 OPEB cost, the percentage of the 2009 OPEB cost contributed to
the plan, and the net OPEB obligation for 2009, the second year the Airport has determined this
cost, are as follows:

Percentage
Annual of Annual Net
Year OPEB OPEB Cost OPEB
Ending Cost Contributed Obligation
12-31-08 § 26,783 0% $ 28,783
12-31-09 28,680 0% 55,463

Funded Status and Funding Progress

As of December 31, 2009, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the plan was 0 percent
funded. The actuarial accrued liabllity for benefits was $247,029, and the actuarial value of
assets was $0, resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $247,029. The
covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $2,731,722, and
the ratio of the UAAL to covered payroll was 9.0 percent.

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan Involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future, Examples include
assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts
determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the
employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations
and new estimates are made about the future. The Schedule of Funding Progress, presented as
Required Supplementary Information following the Notes to Financial Statements, presents
multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or
decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued labilities for benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumption

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the
plan as understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the types of benefits
provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs
between the employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions
used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial
accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of
the calculations.

In the December 31, 2009, actuarial valuation, the projected unit credit actuarial cost method was
used. The UAAL is being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll on an open basis.
The remaining amortization period at December 31, 2009, was 30 years. Other actuarial
assumptions used in the actuarial valuation are as follows:
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Inflation Rate 4.5%
Investment Return 4.5%
Projected Salary Increases 3%
Post-Retirement Benefit Increases 4.5% t0 9.0%
Healthcare Cost Trend Rate 4,5% to 9.0%

C. Pension Plan

Public Employees' Retirement Fund

Plan Description

The Airport Authority contributes to the Indiana Public Employees' Retirement Fund (PERF), a
defined benefit pension plan. PERF is an agent multiple-employer public employee retirement
system, which provides retirement benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. All full-time
employees are eligible to participate in the defined benefit plan. State statutes (IC 5-10.2 and
5-10.3) govern, through the PERF Board, most requirements of the system and give the Airport
Authority the authority to contribute to the plan. The PERF retirement benefit consists of the
pension provided by employer contributions plus an annuity provided by the member's annuity
savings account. The annuity savings account consists of member's contributions, set by state
statute at 3 percent of compensation, plus the interest credited to the member's account. The
employer may elect to make the contributions on behalf of the member.

PERF administers the plan and issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial
statements and required supplementary information for the plan as a whole and for its partici-
pants. The report may be obtained by contacting:

Public Employees' Retirement Fund
One North Capitol, Suite 001
Indianapolis, IN 46204

Ph. (888) 526-1687

or the report can be viewed at www.in.gov/perf/2376.htm

Funding Policy

PERF members are required to contribute 3 percent of their annual covered salary. The Airport
Authority has elected to make this contribution on behalf of employees. The Airport Authority is
required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate; the current rate, for calendar year 2010 is
7.5 percent of annual covered payroll. This rate has been increased for 2011 to 8.5 percent and
will be 9.75 percent for 2012. The contribution requirements of plan members and the Airport
Authority are established and may be amended by the PERF Board of Trustees.
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Actuariat Information for the Above Plan

Annual required contribution
Interest on net pension obligation
Adjustment to annual required contribution

Annual pension cost
Contributions made

Increase in net pension obligation
Net pension obligation, beginning of year

Net pension obligation, end of year

Contribution rates;
Airport Authority
Plan members

Actuarial valuation date

Actuarial cost method

Amortization methed

Amortization period
Amortization period (from date)
Asset valuation method

Actuarial Assumptions

$ 284,751
{11,937)
13,603

286,417
238,555

47,862
{164,652)

$ (116,790)

7.5%
3%
07-01-10
Entry age normal cost
Level percentage of
projected payroll,
closed amortization
period
30 years
07-01-07
Four-year smoothing of
gains/losses on
market value

Investment rate of return 7.00%
Projected future salary increases:
Total 4.00%
Cost-ofliving adjustments 1.00%
Three Year Trend Information
Annual Percentage Net
Pension Cost of APC Pension

Year Ending (APC) Contributed Obligation
06-30-08 $ 197,078 $ (156,165)
06-30-09 230,319 (164,652)
06-30-10 286,417 {116,790)
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Funded Status and Funding Progress for the Above Plan

The funded status of the plan as of June 30, 2010, the most recent actuarial valuation date is

as follows:
Unfunded AAL
Actuarial as a
Actuarial Accrued Annual Percentage
Value of Liability (AAL) Funded Cowered of Cowered
Plan Assets Entry Age  Unfunded AAL Ratio Payrol Payroll
(a) (b) {b-a) (a/b) (c) {{b-a)c)
08-30-10 $ 3,104,179 $ 5245256 § 2,141,077 59% $ 3,193,008 67%

The Schedule of Funding Progress, presented as RSI for the above plan following the Notes
to Financial Statements, presents mutliyear trend information about whether the actuarial
value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued
liabitity for benefits.

D. Passenger Facility Charge

Effective November 1, 1994, a Passenger Facility Charge (PFC) of $3.00 per ticket was imple-
mented by the approval of the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) and the Airport Authority.
The recsipts are to be used to repay the debt service on the 2002 bond issue, and for any other
purposes aflowed by the FAA and the Airport Authority Board. During 2010, the Airport Authority
received $830,989 from 50 separate airlines. The Airport Authority is authorized to receive a
maximum of $34,156,074. As of December 31, 2010, the Airport Authority has received a total of
$17,909,986.

E. Transfer of Capital Assets

QOver the past several years the Airport Authority has implemented muitiple expansion projects.
The expansion of the North/South Runway necessitated the movement of U.S. Highway 20
{Lincolnway West). The airport received federal aid and issued bonds to undertake this project.
in 2010, the Airport Authority officially deeded the new Lincolnway West to St. Joseph County
government. The total cost of this roadway was $8,999,393 and is reflected as a separate line
itern on the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets.
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Public Employee's Retirement Fund

Unfunded
Actuarial AAlL as a
Actuarial Accrued Percentage
Actuarial Value of Liability Unfunded Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation Assets {AAL) AAL Ratic Payroll Payroll
Date (a) [(2)] {a-b) {a/b) (c) {(a-b)/c)
07-01-08 $ 4109391 $ 4,691,527 $ (582,136) 88% $ 3,049,858 {19%)
07-01-09 3,515,462 4,803,489 {1,288,027) 73% 3,191,918 (40%)
07-01-10 3,104,179 5,245,256 (2,141,077) 59% 3,193,006 (67%)
Heailthcare Plan
Unfunded
Actuarial AAlL asa
Actuarial Accrued Percentage
Actuarial Value of Liability Unfunded Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation Assets (AAL AAL Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date (a) (b} {a-b) {a/b) {c) {(a-b)/c)
12-31-08 % - § 222261 $ (222,261) 0% $ 2,652,157 (8%)
12-31-08 - 247,029 (247,029) 0% 2,731,722 (9%)

The Actuarial Valuation performed for December 31, 2008, was the first valuation performed.
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ST. JOSEPH COUNTY AIRPORT AUTHORITY
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES
As Of And For The Year Ended Dacembar 31, 2010

Actual
Budgetary Varance
Budgeted Amounls Basis With Final
Original Finat Amounis Budget
Revenues:
Adrfield 5 626,232 3 626,232 $ 597,490 % (28,742}
Terminal - aviation 1,221,083 1,221,063 1,225,171 4,108
Terminal - nonaviation 121,160 121,160 111,226 {9,934)
Concessionaire 935,083 935,083 1,084,650 128,567
Parking 2,107,766 2,107,768 2,207,040 99,274
Fixed based operations 385,821 395,821 408,748 12,927
Building and {and rent 231,252 231,252 244,849 13,587
Other 125,000 125,000 212,434 87,434
Total revenues 5.763.377 5,783,377 6,071,608 308,231
Expenses:
Persons! services 8,300,265 6,300,285 4,989,731 1,310,534
Supplies 987,538 988,146 565,628 422,518
Other services and charges 4,476,295 4 528 825 1,924,565 2,604,260
Tolal operating expenses 11,764,098 11,817,236 7,479,924 4,337,312
Debt senvice:
Other services and charges 1,845,163 1,845,163 1,844,663 500
Total expenses 13,609,261 13,662,399 9,324,587 4,337,812
Other financing sources (uses):
Property taxes 3,494,354 3,494,354 3,296,128 (198,226)
Interest income 20,000 20,000 10,508 (9,494}
Federal and state grants 6,175,000 6,175,000 5,590,147 (584,853)
Operating transfer 1,222,688 1,222,688 1,218,772 (3.918)
Capital oullay (8,971,605)  (14,682,260)  (12,677,442) 2,004,818
Total other financing socurces (uses) 1,940,437 (3,770,218} (2,561,889} 1,208,329

Deficiency of revenues and other financing sources under
expenses and other financing uses

5 (5905447) 5 {11,660.240) $

(5.814,868) $ 5,854,372
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BUDGET/GAAP RECONCILIATION
Forthe Year Ended December 31, 2010
The major differences between budgetary (non-GAAP) basis and GAAP basis are:
a. Revenues are recorded when received in cash (budgetary} as opposed to suscaptible to accrual (GAAP).
b. Expenses are recorded when pald in cash (budgelary) as opposed to when the liability is incurred (GAAP).
c. Encumbrances outstanding &t year-end are recorded as expenses for budgelary purposes.

d. Capital cullays are recorded as expenses when paid (budgelary) as opposed to additions to fixed assets
when costs are incurred {GAAP).

e. Depreciation and amortization expense is not recognized in budgetary basis,

f. Principal pald on bonds is recorded as expenses when paid {budgetary) as opposed o a
redudlion of liabilities (GAAP),

Adjustments necessary to convert the results of operations at the end of the year on a budgetary basis to a GAAP basis are
as follows:

Deficiency of revenues and other financing sources under

expenses and other financing uses {budgetary basis) $ (5,814,868)
Adjustments:
To adjust revenues for accruals 2,258,583
To adjust expenses for accruals 1,287,357
Encumbrances 3,200,022
Transfers (1,218,772)
Capital expanses 9,554,556
Depreciation {3.667,220)
Amopization {14,628)
Debt payments 1,245,000
Transfer of property to another governmental unit (8,999,393)
Loss on disposal of assets (882,670)
Property management activity (net) 51,449
Non-budgeted funds (net) (788,410
Change in net assets (GAAP basis) § (3,898,994)

37



ST. JOSEPH COUNTY AIRPORT AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF PASSENGER FACILITY CHARGES
As Of And For The Year Ended December 31, 2010

Cash balance, January 1 $2,302,774
Receipts:
Passenger facility charge collections 830,989
Interest 2,307
Tolal receipts 833,266
Disbursements:
Teansfer to bond and interest fund 1,218,772
Cash balance, December 31 $1,917.298
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STATISTICAL SECTION

This part of the St. Joseph County Airport Authority’'s comprehensive annual financial
report presents detailed information as a context for understanding what the information in
the financial statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary information reveals
about the Authority's overall financial health.

Contents Page
Financial Trends 40
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader

understand how the Authority's financial performance and well-being
have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity 43

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the
Authority’s most significant local revenue sources.

Debt Capacity 46

These schedules present information to help the reader assess the
affordabiiity of the Authority’s current levels of outstanding debt and
the Authority’s ability to issue additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information 50

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help
the reader understand the environment within which the Authority’'s
financial activities take place.

QOperating Information 56

These schedules contain information and infrastructure data to help
the reader understand how the information in the Authority’s financial
report relates to the services the Authority provides and the activities
it performs.

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the
comprehensive annual financial reports for the relevant year.

39



Lo¥'908's $ £92'991'6 $ 159'969°LL $ 60L'9S66 § /9GGrLOL $ O0E8Cir0b S 060COL0L § 1OVLvOLL § E£06Ge86 § GYOGEODL &
R TA [SE+SLT AR SErBre ¥ BLE95E ¥ 8I8EEE ¥ BLvPE Y I0ETI5Y 1BE 150 Y S8 500F
YN Z] SOvIL BGT VL 6IZ% 0L oE 195002 FANNTT PN BLEELL . ZETLOL
89Z'ee €0Z'trtr - 609'sL seL've - - L1259 - -
- - - LIZ' 108 cir'esy 891°L5T 556'2PT ¥L1'G6T 186'82¢ IY6'eLT
00s'vz £r9'5PE - - - LLL'BYL - - - -
796'€T - - - - - - - - -
£95'bZE 025'0%1L £reieoL LTIy ¥69'vEe 8ZL'0ZY zie'ees 188242 z8e'L9 L16'GL
- - - - - LeL'vZs +96'G6Y 1L9'8LS 1£9'9e8 9Z¥'0Z9
zigoee £26'6H0'E 8¥6'L5e's 0Q'LLZ'E 605'P0S'S €LL'Z8LT 6¥8'199'C LrL'606'T 01L'20L'2 689'266'
GZO0ELE SITLIFS [LiFAF AN ¥IZ 689G BFOUGLS  TEBOTr9  EERGIPY  FROBOrS CIGEBLS SPLTEDS
= 0528 5T8 I0% OEEBL LT 8L 66 [T X N L TACTA BLo0r BE0Cy
- - - - - - - - - S95'syL
0Z0'0ZL'S 995'C0¥'S §/£'608'c ¥rL'699'S LrL'opL's ¥aL'6E0'9 81Z'L0¥'9 §08'2588'9 £8e'cLL's 6EL'0/8'S
ZIBSEL BYGIST FATA Z6r 052 PG4 IBT 151 GEALYE 188 9ZT [AX-AWZ KX A—
660'98L LLZ'LET 95.°/82 Z8v'slT 655'98¢ vLL'0zT IYE'vEY 0eL'e8se 000°20F avl'eoy
B8'209'L B6P'559'L LZ9%LL'T SrP'8.6'L 0st'orL'z 6¥Z'068'T 865'vit'T OPE'LPS'Z 18V 180T ord'L0ZT
GEB'TL'L GLY' LT TE6YLLL 918'950'L PL0'9LL'L 0L5°ZS1L'L 008'vEZ'L Lp0'280' 166950 LEL'E90'L
OLr'PEL 8eE'LLL £LTVLL 918'89L 626'851 aLo'ogL SIZ'ZYL 820'gtrL £15'6ZL RZZT'LLL
g8e'lcL'L LEL'VEL')L £Y0'9ZT'L SeY'eZe’l 6L'L0LY 152'6Z¢'1 (]R3 818'742': £01'8LZ°L LLL'GZE'L
CLE'ELS $ ¥0£'049 $ £8¥'1S9 $ zZrl'ole $ 0EL'siS 3 L10'959 $ BPE'tHI $ 568989 $ £9.°1L09 $ 012's09 $

1002 2002 £002 ¥00z S80¢ 3002 VT4 8002 6002 [\

(s1sva 'dV'V'D)
SuVIA NIL LSV
SANNIAIH 40 I TNTIHOS

AMRHOHLINY LYOdYIY ALNNOD HAISOr LS

BNUBADY 1ej0)
anuaAdy Bunesadouop €301

PYO

SI9SSY PaxId Jo [esodsiq U0 uIeD
anuaasy Juswabeuew Apadoid

sjuRID 1O
dnues|D uned [end
DUIOIU| FSUA|
suonnqUIsSIQ XeL IO
saxe] Auadoiyg
anuaady Bunesadouon

29105 Hodury 1E10L

DRO
jeag Bunesadp

[B10] - AnUdAIY ad1aag podary
juay pue pue Buiping
suonjesado aseg paxi4
Gunpred
SUGISSIIUOD
uoHeIAY UON - [BUIRLIS]
UOIIBIAY [RUILLIA ]
PIRIHY

PNUDADY aMAISG podiry

AHOOZLYD ANNIAIH

o

-



¥8Z0BL6S $ 6YSLIYYD § S0Z'96TLL § Z.9'9E0°L. $ LIESpE6. $ S0009LEE® $ SIC 06998 & GBI Y6668 § SOrPoLog LOY'GSZrE
L0S7eB ¥ €8G0S 009SSP< ZZCEROCL CYANETN] 0L AL S FA YA OET0v L BILZIES FPir Bl
0r6'850'S 665'82Y'T 9LT'9eT sLe'lst's cLL'8oL'Y 225'L00'y ZGZ'886'e Z55'668'C vEZ'SI9'C 656'285'
188'961'16 Zil'ers'os 68E'¥09'65 ¥el'L6r'L9 0LL'0E0'LY viT'085'vL PLELEP'SL 998°289'6.L Zr0'Zo9'el 820'205'9L
ZOZ'LE0Z  $ S9TU6OY 5 959'R189 & J9YORL'S € 6E9806¢ § YEOPIGE § ECC0SBZ & 00SPOEE S (ELzaPm D) (¥66'868'¢)
Z98'650' 1 Z0EEhl 1 GEv el b BIP IO T PEEEIE 1680907 88680t T15096 99028 ¥ee5es
- - - - - {v52's22) - - - (cee's66'a)
¥or'06. 85¢'LE6'E §26'620'F ¥28'210's £62'068'2 1i8'828'C 8£9'5ZL'E £Y9'980'y 8Tr'reg e'eLe's
986'041 $ (Bev'zig) ¢ segz'ole’l  § (os7'6L8) ¢ {(evs'ses) s o0gl'lS) $ (gov'se/z'l) ¢ (959'269°)) ¢ (S98°cer'E) {Zel'8ba'e)
$TSGEF'S  § S9TYYSE $ GYS0B0OL S SBY'BIEOL § GLLILWOLL © O0SOLZE0L § SBVBE0ZL 6 ZS0PELel & Do lECEl L82'880'eL
IC8eze YA E] 15 OPE EINTE] REC 650 Ve viv TIBPIOL B8V 156 ECNET BEI VRS L
[WE-NGTA ISBvil = - - ; - s = =
- - 6L5'L - - 29819 - - - 5¥E'T6E
- - - - - - - - - LZ£'085
- - - 904'L6E vlo'zer 9z5'122 958'68Z 851607 0’ L6T £BY'TZZ
- S5tLE - - - . - - - -
SLEYL ose'se ra ) izr'oe 0/6'9 8Za'¥L 929'%L 829'vL 829'vl 828'FL
128'162 8Ly ZOY Yor'rLe 1z8'zez ¥65'661 FrAAR Lev'viL 298'LzL 79E'5.9 LYEFLY
BIZZCre 1212068 FIOPELE SCLEPSs  II§T0vol BOEIVE S PESTIE 0L BI5CRL LI PECVEE CL EFPI 1
§2LT8C SBLFITE BECEFL € 8I6500T §50696'C £85°5V6C LBE'IGET 0zg'080'e 659'028°¢ 0zT’199'e
- SLE'vE - - - - - - - -
v21'0z8°L Z¥S'8EL'T PLP'ZLL'T 5Z8'S0L'T 0el'gle'z £64°120'Z §81'209'7 ehi'vi0'E 06'PEL'E 66L'9LL'T
oLe'oLp YES'SLY L06'295 0Z6'9L9 L1Z'¥Z9 200'26% P85'80L 065'284 $95'808 §LL'985
806'18L'e  § GEEUEY'T $ POO'LSB'E & ZOO'SIE'T § SIEERLt § SrRZTEIY $ 850'859% ¢ oiovesh  § zal'olg'y 805'p8R'Y
1602 2002 £002 002 (TS 8002 o0z 8002 600Z 010z

(sisve 'd'vv'D)

SHVEA NIL ISV
S138SY L3N NI STONYHD ANV SISNIJXT 40 ITINAIHIS
ALRMOHLAY LHOdNIY ALNACO HAISOr 1S

$1955V 10N |30L

pajaIsaiun
PajauIsay

399 polelay o JaN
sjassy jepde) ut pajsaau)

QN3 ¥V3A LV S13SSY L3N

5]9SSY 9N Ul abueyn
abieys Ayiseq sabuassey
s1assy jendes jo Jajsuel]
suonnguiuo) euded

SUORNYLIILOL) 31053g WO
sasuadxg [ej0)
sasuadxg Gugeradouoy [e10],

dnues|) wied |ang
51955y |endepesedsiq uo sso
Aaljod 1955y [epden w abueyn U0 ss0T
asuadxy Juawabeuel Asedory
led puog Aes s3sopuniwaly
sosuadxy uonezipHowy
asuadxy jsauagu|
isasuadxg BunesadoucN

sasuadxg bupeiado jejo

uonersaidag

asuadxy jqeq peg

sabiieys pue 5a31A195 JOY10

sanddng

SBDIAIRG [RUOSIDG
:sasuadxy Buygeiadp

-AMODALYD ASNIHXT

M



EFOTLSLL  § PGSTLE'SL § OEOGPYIZ § $53'CET9L § 8/6UZTYML § £E5'98C'9L § 2Z69FBLEL $ OLVBLLLL § 6B0CE0CCL § ML L0BE  §

SIeZF97 EYOIGL L AT 0S0Gvrie  PSBEGE oL BI6 2941 P AT ZEOTBL L SIF LT B0Z GOZ €1

(ZL1'96%) LLE'0SS'LL o1¥'2e8' {921°L6L'G) L AR TN (¥’ LE')) (ov'1L60°T) {aLZ's5L+'2) £eL'sEl (848'e0%'e)

L¥r'ceE 6V9'SLL SZP'90L 992's61 S00'809 656968 zhe'ess 28E°212 28919 LLS'GL

LrP'SEZ BP9'SLL STY'99) 99Z'56L S00°908 556'86% Zig'esL 188242 288'19 L15'SH

(o8FEiTE} 096'E06'E {LPT06YC) (5967985°) (F3'667¢) 681 (18862 %) [CREGEREA) {1BY 09¥'E) {GEr6Ee'S)

(860°2h) {68201 {£61799] - - - - - - -

- - - - - £p9'0ET - 00¥'eoE - -

- 8028 - 0506 959'28 - - LS¥'0LE - -

(680" 1) (B¢'c8t) (806°8986) (s51'c0g) {0z 0v8) {s00' L08R} (&12'252) (ge8'cLL) (885'859) (£99'665)

(0o0'cse'L) (000'51E'2) (000's6%' L) (co0'sze'L) (000'0%0'L) {ooo'szL'L) (o00'002'L) (coo'ss2'L) (oon'ese’)) (000'5%2*L)

(see'695's) (860've2'a) (199°999'%) (coz't8L's) (656'89'9) {»96'051°6) (£82'169'2) (ce6'¥ie's) (586'180'e) (£08'5£6'6)

$£9'026 968'8k0'y 9ZE'ELO'E gZg'zLs LIV'TRO'S 2e8'690°s OkL'38L'E £P0'980't 2ZH'PE8 £¥1'065°G

SEL'OLL'} a51'shL'L sBH'ZEL L 918'990'L 200176 265'¢¥0°L GLA'LLLL £15'086 ¥99'020 £86'0E3

SLZ'SER'L Z1E'902'PL - - - - - - - -

S09'0LD'S 0£2'08L'E ¥21'929'G 162'160°¢ 818'60.' +06'908'E £L8LLL'E SSL LY L FLO'ELL'S 682'151'E

T ZI0Gi1 ¥IEvaE B 8010% e = g = -

- (Lsg'vLL) - - - - - - - -

- - - 966'08% o9vZ'0L - - - ozz'se £20'90}

GESPEE'E sPL'gEL'S 616'802'S L88'L98'T L0G'96%' $06'908'E SLRLLLE gcL'izy'L 6" 12H'G rA

00542 - - - - - - - 000062 -

{oot'L) - - - - - - - - -

ZTHeT 126'92 615V z69°Le Lg's - - - - -

861'¢2 666'SZ zZov'sz 820'LE ov9'6eZ - - - - -

(€5L692) (§Z89ec)  (Zee0i9) FILEviT) GIETO5 1) (80FSIE) TFBEEie)) EesvILT) Zgo5esl) AT

(VEZ3E) = - s - s - e - B

162'¢ - - - - - - - - -

92L'e28°T - - - - - - - - -

(869°286°2) - - - - - - - - -

9,128 ££9'662 8GLPTL - - L29's6E G5E'852 268962 848'22L zee' oL

- (GLi'rzere) (t25'opL'e) (£89'820't) (cos'o61't) (ri6'212'%) (&s0'L0g'y) {509°006°F) (z2rL0s'y) (¥68'510'G)

- (818'€95'T} (ge9'81L'2) {808'/$9'T) (eL£'210') (£60°456'2) (aL8's12'e) {260'058°¢) (Li8'2Z61'E) (PoR'se5'2)

- § ZLMSE'S  § 81909 § LLLUES'S  § LOSLOLS  § BEO'SSE'S  § vEE'POS'®  § LGE'BLL9  § pYO'SES’S § 212'99sS &
1002 002 £002 ¥002 Tooz 9002 2002 8002 6002 610z

{sisva 'd'vvyo)

L2 Y38W3D30 3AANT SYVIA HOd

SINIFTVAINDA HSVD ANV HSVD NI STONVHD
AMOHLNY LHOdYIV ALNNOD HAASOr "1S

1€ Joquionng 'sjudjeanby yseD pue yses
L Arenuep ‘sjuojeainbg yseD pue ysesn
SIUO(EAINDT YSED PUT YSED U] 0SLOAIU] JON

sapaloY Bupseau] A popinoid ysed JeN
PIOS SJUBWITSOAU|
posey3any SIUOURSOAUL
POAISD0Y JSOLOIU]

SOIIARDY BUGSOAU| WoIY SMO[ YSED

SOHUARDY Bujoueuld pajeioy pue (eydes Aq pasn Ysed 19N
150 enss| puog
SUBWISINGS]] 0SSy [Tide] Jo punjoy
S)0SSY [eyideD jo SOJES WAl SPOdI0ly
PUET JO MRS WL SPROAIL
1q9g |T3deD uo pIEd 150403u)
190 |eides uo pied jedipupd
$10SSY (endeD) JO UOPINISUCS PUC UCISINhDY
suogngauog [eydes
sobupyD Sioey Jobuossey
1q0¢7 |e31des woay spooadld
SOIARDY BuldUELL POIRIOY PUE [ERUED WOLY SMOJ] YSED

SAPIARDY Bupduteur jeydesuoy Ag poplacsd USED 10N
s3dioooy Bupesodouop Jog
dn ueoy) uopnjed pue uued jond
Aanoy JuowoBeuey LAsodosg
SOXE] owosu} Aunon pur Ausdord
Fueld 23Elg pUC [Ldpoy
UTO] WO JSOI0WNE]
uLeT woad [edputg
Jojraad Oseg PoX|4 03 uEoT]
posings[p [ediouisd ueoy
sjuswieday 350403u) UeOT]
sudwieday edjoug ueo
SOy Bupueu 4 [T dEINON WL Smopy YSED

SIRABY Bupesedo Ag popiacid ysen joN
SORIYLIT put sjessy Uy oBuBYD JeN
dn ueojn uey jong
uvopepesdag
5507 Bupesadg
POAJODIY YSED MDYIO
sookojdiug oy pled ysen
SJ033edjuo) pue su9qddng of pled yses
SI0S] PUC SIOLIOISNY) WOLY PAAIOIOY YSBD
SopARdY Bupresodo woad smojd yses

42



s 95'v% 98 1508 fxe i 6£'5% as'rs ¥5'58 8468 Lg'ss

0ls2 Loz 9z LT 8082 7682 862 8508 09'LE a5ze psee

9.°0% 8208 0808 2808 ¥808 180% 0608 £6°0% 96°0% 8608

L0€ET $ Lr'ze 60'6Z $ svsZ $ ZLsz $ 8rsT $ 292 $ slIg $ Lo'LE $ 98'Le g

eL'ele 100'60% 880'z0Y 90l1'0sg yog'ere 052'28¢8 z95'688 SLO'PSE syi'vle L20'sLE

LeP'909'8  $  19/°98L'6 1S9'969'LL $ 60.'9€6'6  $ Z9S'SPLOL § OEZIPOL § 0600SZ0F § LEPOCOLL § L606v65 © 6v96500L 5

%S0 %0'LY ol Ly %EZY BT EY % L %p 0t %S LY %L 0t %6°6¢

Lrr'osh's LS6'¥SL'S 0S¥'646'G SEY'EPT'Y 6L6'988'Y 8.8'Cee't Z61'vye'y LOE'TLS'Y 66 LGS0 806'800't

EErAA AT B 60957 SELVE - = ITrse - =

- - - L4Z'40g ELY'EBY 391'452 SS6'ZrZ PlL562 186'8Z8 TYE'ELZ

005z £F9'6re - - - Lil'stl - - - -

Z96'cZ - - - - - - - - -

9/l'z8 ZL9'tLL 851'vel 8.2'8 801°0% L95'00Z zhi'osl LL0's0r 8/E'C7TL Ze8'10L

£95'ree 045'0FL eYE'e0l TiT Pl P69'¥EE gzL'czy ZLe'ees 8g'1T Z88'L9 LL5'SL

- - - - - LeL'vZS ¥96's6t Li9'8l9 ie9'0eg 9Zr'02g

ZiE'00' £T6'SH0'e ve'LSe'S PO LLZ'E 605'¥05'S £21'284'2 6v8'L8g'z Lr2'606'2 LoL'zasL'e 689'/66'C

%188 %2'9E %BEE %0°5E %69t %G LE %Z'8E %E'LE %698 %818

00Z'esZ'e oLi'9LE's 616'L66'C SOL'PIF'E obs'sel's 0L6'6Z6' 886'L0L't 189'80}'t 628'699'c rLY'LEL'E

Zlesee  gvise FLFAGETY BBY05¢ orosee VAT 568 L¥E I6892e LSLZe groere

- 052'8 928'.0¢ 026'61 205'8L £2/.'66 0Z9'%L gsg'e 6L9°0L 68021

- - - - - - - 196'46 g2L'eLl 595'stl

629'£09'L B6¥'659'L L29'vLL'T Shr'e/6') ost'orL'z SP2'068'T BBS'FLY'T ove'Lbs'e lav'isn'e 0t0'202'

886" FYLL Siv'LLE'L We'riLL 9/9'960'L PLO'DLLL 0452811 009'¥ET | Ly0'L£80°L LE6'950'L LEL'600°L

0Lt'P6L e 211 g2t 9L9'89) 625'851 aL0'0EL STV 8/0'grL £15'621 9ZZ'LLL

%E LT %E'TE %S8L %ETT %66 %L L2 %¥'LT %ELT %b'ZT %ETT

0z8'9cs’ L 904'560' z8Z'55L'2 60L'GLZ'T 80.'6L0'C ZP0'60Z'2 QL8' 208’2 Erysre's 148'422'2 6ZL'682'2

650987 1T LEE 3GLi8e ZBYSIE 855 9¢% CTAPF#2 ZFE FEY AT 000°20% T

8pe'icL't LEL'PEL'L £r0'98T' L Sep'EZe'L BLY'L0LL 252'528°L 6L9'89L"L 8L8'ZLZ L £0L'6L2 L LLL'SZT'L

g/e'els $ 02049 £8t'LG9 $ Zvrl'glg $ 082'GLS $  LL0'9%9 $ &¥s'rr9 $ 568'389 $ 89/'L0% ¢ 0LZ's08 $
1002 200z £00C 00z S0GE 9002 1002 3002 6002 010z

(siIsvg 'd'v'vo)

LE HIHINIOAA QIANT SHVYIA 0L LSYT
SFDUVHI ANV STLVYH ANITHIV GITINGAIHDS
UNV 43ONISSVd QINY 1dNI ¥3d 1509 ‘SIOUN0S ANNIATY TVLIONING
ALIHOHLNY LHOJUIV ALNNOD HAISOr "1S

wawsug|dug 1ad 1500 auy

(1005 *bs sad) sojey [euay J03UN0Y [PUILLIA]
('sd1 000°I 124) 294 Bulpue
SALYYH SNITHIV LOVEINGD

HIDNASSVd
QIANY1dNZ d3ad INNIATY TYLOL

sioBuassed paugdug

SINNIAIYE TVLICL

SNUBADY |BIO) JO JUDDUSY

SANNIATY ONILYEIJO-NON TYLOL
S19SSY paxi4

0 [esodsiq uo utes

JnuaAay Juawabeuely Auadoid

sjuer LAY0

driueajn uue janyg

10

AWOILY JSIUNUY

suonnqUIsIg Xel W0

saxe] Apadolg
SZNNIAIY ONLLVHIJO-NON

SINUIASYN [€I0] JO JUIDIDY
SENNIAIN NOILYIAV-NON TY.LOL

uay pue pue Buipping

B0

juels Bunesado

Bureg

SUQISSIUO0D

UOQRIAY UON ~ [EUILLID ]
SANNIATY NOLLYIAY-NON

SANUIARY 1e)0] JO IS
SIANNIAIY QILVITH-NOLLYIAY TvLOL
suonessdQ aseqg paxid
UORBIAY [BUILLID L
PIagy
SANNIATIY QILVTIIH-NOILVIAY

$I2UNOS INNIATY TVIONING

43



000'LL2'2ER'S
000'008'696'S
186'096'955'6
Z.9'128'v90'8
6¥8'219'92'6
L94%PR'LLT'E
L8p'€ZL'G98'6
G5Z'290'r95'6
986'09t'S0P'g
$92'142'01L¥'8

SN[EA [emay

pajewnss

‘pasn poylaw snomald sy USA] PRy UDILUM ‘SN[EA UAWBoRdal SNSISA SnjeA 19xBW

Je Apadoid ssasse 0F sem [eof s) g0z W algeARd SBxel Jof ZO0Z Ui usxeuspun sem Auadold |[2ar JO UBWISSISSedy (p)

"AlBulpJosoe pasearoap B1M SSe) Xe} PUS PISEIOUI SJ9M SON|BA PSSISSY “SIBIOP JE10} IO J0B)E OU SBY UOISISAUCD Bl “UolEN|eA

886578l

892C'e
S¥asy
2168
0ezey
POZL'S
orsey
veee'y
0Py
$ 6608

$

ojey Xe ], yoanig
€101

€300

PSS JO %001 03 %ES Woy uone|siBal siejs AQ PaUBAUCD alom sajes XB) Z00Z @1qefed 100z ‘200z Wl anpeyg (g)

“Apsdosd sy Jo SNfeA YSED BNUp 8Ul 30 %, §/L €F 1B
Jedh YoBS 4O | YDIBp U0 JOSSISSY AUNoD 3yl Ag paysI|gRIS? 2I0M SSN(RA Passasse Z00Z O Joud (2)

loppny Aunoed ydasor 1§ syl pUB S0UBUIY JUSWLISACS {8207 O Wawpedeg S1Elg BURIDY| @010 (1)

000 LE2'PP6' LS SLL'B0L L6 ZI£'950'6618 ¥88'L09'SEE Y 829'00Z'sH' LS
(g SL¥'962'285°L {£) S85'L0G /8Py €
¥ (g) L09'e8L 2041 7 (€ vI€'vZ8'6rR'L ) (£
# © 629'G56'Z81'L (¥ (g £P0'T/8'186' L ) (€
{r © 998°619'509'| ¥ (&) £86'264'089'2 ) (g
{t (€ SL1LL0'00S' | & (€ z69'/28'110'L ¥ (£
{7 € S¥P'gLL'B60'L ) (g 9£0'600'958'8 {t) ()
¥ (e 589'662'050'L (#) (&) 016'995'F16'8 ¥ {2
{# (e ¥GEPR0'866 ) (&) zeg'Zes L0v'L ) (g
{# (€) 088'9EL'1OL'L & (& P88VE0'SST L ) &)

BN[EA PISSassy

SM|EA [0y

BMEA poSsassy

Snjep jenPy
pajewnys3

SN[EA POSSOSSY
pajewnsy

Auadoad euosiag Kuadouyd [eay

) (£} (2) (1) SHVIAIVOSId NIL LSV
ALHMEdONd T1EYXVL JO INTVYA TVNLOV AILVINILSE ANV g3SSISSY
YNVIQNI ‘ALNNOD HdAZISOr “18

1sajoN

(211114
€00¢
£002
002
5002
3002
2002
8002
600T
0102

Teay

44



‘AiBuipioooe paseardap siem SRS Xe) PUB PISEDIOU| 3I9M SON|BA PISSASSY 'SJBJIOP [E]0} UO J99LJ. OU SBY UOISISAUCD 8Y | UOHEN[EA
POSSISSE JO %00 0} %EE wolj uonesiBa) 3)eis Ag papsau0d asem sajes Xe} Z00zZ sigeded 00z ‘200z W SA08YT

‘Auadosd 2y} Jo SnjeA yseD Sy UL 40 % ¢/ £E 38
Jeak yoes Jo | UYoJey uo 10ssassy AJUnoD syp Aq paysijqeiss a1am SIN[BA Passasse ZOOZ O oud @)

Joupny Agunog ydssor g :saineg (1) IS9JON

8955'81 LozL osLe E162°2 99¢. £29¢°9 gTLL zZovL'e Lo’ 1002
26229 00" 6.0} ¥999'2 96¥T ST AR zeso SLVE €200 Z00Z
S¥8S ¥ TLP0 89.0° 9096°L 989l 6Lt rAANN 998/ £e00” £00Z
2168'% ove0” 2280 SLLL'E oggL’ LOZ9'L £Z60° zs9L 200" Y002
0£Z8v £620° LESO" SplL'T vegL 69651 9lz0° Le8s ¥Zo0° G002
021G 100" 9580 $6/12 YirdsrA £€09°) 6920 6686 ¥200° 9002
oFs8y 2120 1280 ov0L2 ls61 6LYGL Gez0’ 1128 ¥200° 2002
¥eze v Z8Z0° 1280 96822 oLz PR -a} z8v0’ Q/6L ¥200° 80602
6E0V v X0 1280 L80¥'T 1STT 1620°L 18507 £695° 0000 6002
6609°% $ Zweo $ 1280 $ 64202 $ 1592 ¢ g0l $ 90v0 $ 9985 ¢ 0000 $ 0L0Z
1e50] Kuocginy uonepodsuel) Sumoj pue  {SJATRIG] (shomsig (Si[dysumo]  Aunog EIETS AT
Hodny puag yinog SapLD looyss

SUVIA TVISId NIL 1SV
@ (1) (3N1vYA d3sS3ISSY 40 00L$ ¥Id)
SININNNIAOD ONIddVTIIAO ANV 103HId - STLVY XV ALNIJOHd
VYNVIAN! ‘ALNNOD HAISOr "1S

45



“@nfeA passasse [enloe au} jo {grL) ply-euo o) lenbe Buleq se PBUYEP MOU St aNEA PYISTIPE BY) 'BINIEIS BUBIDU] Jod

"ABLipicaoe paseRsp st Xel pue Auadald Jo SnieA USED aNiL el JO %00) O} PISERISL| SONEA Passossy "SIE[OP K10} U0 1D9YE oU pey
UOISIBALCD SIYL "UOHBN{EA PSSSESSE O %001 0 %EE WOl UsiesiBal 21E1S A4 polpAUCS alam SBIE Xe) Z00Z Blaeied 100z
Z00Z Yl aARaLT “Ausdoud Jo aNIEA YSeD SUIL BU) JO %E/L £F S& PAYSIQEISS JOM SBNEA POSSBSSY ‘Z00Z 0 JoUd  {Z)

“func) ydesor 15 u Apadosd ggexe] o
IneA pRisnipy Lo passassy [y au Jo {242) weaad ams 51 Auouiny Lodity BY Joj MW 1Geq uonebia0 eued syl (1)  SSIoN

056°00£'6Z $ BET0L92) 6ZE'LE0'2Y 3 G9L'GZLY $ zig'sgz'ey 3 1812 $ 1Z5'205°06 $ 9.1'86Z2S 3 SEL'EYB'ZF $ SRUITVY $ wbisel 3900 w60t
DBLBEL L2381 YPI9FT 81196 PEIN A7) 2157558 JET65T BLTFS BOL'ZEY IZ0YES PRI 93AISS IGIQ Ul JIGEIRAY JUNOLIY
OvL'6Er'6Z $ 995'989'/} £L0'8L0'ey $ Ty $ 6lr'i08'ey $ 96Z'298'tY $ L51'e60'lS $ S5p'Z9E'zs $ ipt'ive'er $ ZI8'Le9'vr $ LT
000SPYE 000021 ¢e 000Ge80e  000GLLEL 000°0L9'ZL 000SFG 90 GG0SPESL 00004071 GO0SETCL BO0BEY 11 Bupumising spuog
OFL'veg'se $ 995'9ig'se sl0'eLL'es $ y8i'zEr'09 $ 6L¥'LLS'1E $ 86Z'TLH'LY $ /sl'ser'sy $ SSP'ZEY'9 $ lrp'eco’es $ Zig'tLl'es $ HWIT 920
%O'T %4990 %02 %A'T %0'E %02 %0'e %0'T %0'e %0 aBeyuansag Nwiy 3990
000'ZEZ'PPE'L $ 000°008'696'C § 090'6S9'SBL'E § #3T609'LZ0'C § 0S6'0/8'B/0'C § TTEWISOLO' § JZBLOGLZET § ZGITROLICE § 628'Z28'l08'Z $ 985'065'608'T $ {z) on[ep paisnlpy o passassy [enioy
Tooz 7002 B 507 5002 5002 002 3002 5002 [

{1) s¥vaA TVISId 0L 1SV
NIDMVIR 1930 TvO37 40 NOILVLNIWOD
AL-MOHLAY JHOdNIV ALNNOD HAASOr 1S

46



‘pazijendes 1saisiut Jo 13U st 1sau (Z)

'sAeiino jeides spn@ut Jou op sainypuadxy jelausn (1) 1SAJON
%L ve 862'191'2 000'0gt'L 97/'¢T9'C §2E'eEY's 860'292°1 660'LLY 000°0gE"L 1002
%P6e oir'valL's 000'sle'e S6L'v19'T S9Z'vPS'6 B6LF00L"C 6.Y'G8E 000'GLE'E 200g
%S6¢ 0/Z'cet's 0oo'ssy'L S60'ZrL'e $9£'080'01 806'€8P'C 806'886 000'gEY' L £002
%l've L06'.eT's 000'szs'L 2./6'600'c g8¥'8Le 0l aGL'gee'e G51'e0E 000'5Z6'L 00z
%90T LGP'LLL'B 000'0F0" L 869'696'Z SLLLYOLL 0zi'088'L 0Z2'0re 000'0F0'L S00¢T
%L'T2 290'105'8 000'6ZL'L £85'GHB'E 059'LZe'0L 800°926'L 900108 000'52L'E 900¢
%061 860°282'0L 000002 L 1LBE'1G6'T S6t'6e0'TL eLLLS6'L AW AYLT) 000°002'L 2002
%Z'8lL LEV'816'0L 000’642 L 0z9'060't LSO'veL'ZL 888'Ge8'L 288'0LL 000'6/2't 8002
%t8l 699'G/0'LL oo0'sLE' L 669'089' gze'Lee'el 885'€£0'2 285'259 000's/E'L 6002
%Nt LL L9G'999'0L $ 000'GPZ'L ¢ 022/99'¢ $ 182'880°ClL ¢ TBLSES'L § 26.'865 $ oooerZ'l ¢ 0102
saunypuadxy sainmpuadxy [ediouy uonersaldag sasuadx] ELTTNET- R GEN] Isalsu| jediound lesp
[eladag) 30 |EJBURS) PPY 5537 {E10L [eloL

03 201195 leloL
192 30 opey

() (1) STUNLIANTIXT TVHINTD TVLOL OL
1930 QIANOS HOd4 IDIANIAS 1934 TYNNNY =0 OILVY
ALIMOHLAY LHOdHIV ALNNOD HA3SOr "LS

47



Z 9N oseg (5)
“1eah Bumolio) aup jo | Arenuep sigeded g Jaquieoag uo Juabe [easy Ag plBy spuny sapnioul ‘LOoZ sAlosls (1)

‘Pasn poylawt snoinald ayl usaq pey uoiym ‘Snjea juswisoe|dal SNSIsA anjeA J9veW 18 Auadold ssasse
o sem [eob s) 00z Ut slqeled sexe) 10} ZOOZ Ut uaEHSpUN sem Auadoud 1eal jo uswussasseal y  {g)

‘Apadoud jo anjea yseo ang syl o %4001 18
Paysi|qelsa alom san(ea passasse ‘700z Uilm aaoayg Ausdold au Jo snjea USED SN 941 10 %E/L £ 18
JeaA yoea JO L yoJey UO JOSSTSSY AUNOY Sy1 AQ POUSI(E)SS SI9M SBNJEA PBSSISSE ZO0Z 01 10ig (2)

010z 03 8jqedydde sjewns3 uogelndod 0L0Z ‘600z UBNo.U LOOZ sieah of sigesidde sfewnss uoendod 000z

S2IAIRS JUBLUO[BAR(] SOI0PHUOM JO JUsWLBdaQ BURIDU] @Y} pUB SRSUS) JO Juawipeds 'S N eaunog (L) :SaloN

£0'GE %L8LY 02Z'90¢'s ogL'ect 000'StH'6 000'LET'46'L 655'692Z
9z'ce %t0LE £L9'111L'22 1Z8'81 000'0gL'22 000'008'696'S 655'692
9LeL %050 952'885'61 PrLOP0'L 000'5£9'02 186'096'255'6 655'592
60°0L %S0T’ 185'L9'8L 6L7°96 000'0LL'8L 7.9'.78'790's 655'59Z
0Z'v9 %9r8l’ £58'/Q'LL 1P1'Z29 000'029'2L 6v8'7L9'982'6 £55'69C
£8'65 %STLL £87'688'G1 L15'659 000'6t5'9L L9.'vp8'L1T'8 655'69Z
95'GS %L8F1 v9L'SSL Pl 9£9'885 000'SPE'SL LBP'CTL'696'6 655'59Z
rL2s %Q0p L’ 1ZL'S00'rL 64Z'%9 000'020'7L §GZ'298'v96's 655'692
£6'sh %LStL 18T L6L'2ZL 80/.'L61 000'669'21 986'99¥'S0p'g 655'69Z
69°0v$ %4621 £.6'SL6'0L $ [20'veS $ 000°0sP'LL $ vosiLalr's 8 L£6'092

gide) iad () Bfi[EA passasSy o1 j9eq papuog Slqenesy ssiiol (¢} 3990 papuod (g} (27 onjep (i) udnemdogd
199Q papuod 19N 192d papuog JoN 19N 801A195 1980 $S0.9) passassy

jo abrjuaalag

SUVIA TYDISId NIL 1SV
V1IdY ¥3d 1930 a3aNOd 13N ANV INTVA dIS$SISSY O1 19330 QIANOT 13N 40 Olivy
AL-MOHLNY LIOdHIV ALNNOD HAISOr 'LS

L00Z
2002
£00zT
¥00c
$002
9002
2002
8002
6002
010z

TESH

48



"SUBC| [BLIOWSLL SUBISIOA PUB 'SUBO] pUN SSNOY|00YIS UOLIWOD ‘Spuoy uolerodion Buipiing |ooyos sepnpu (¢

‘sucheniea passasse |euy 010z sigeAed 00z Ue paseq aie ssbejusaiad 1gap Buiddesan (¢
"s9sE [eydes pue Jqad pepuog uonebiqo [eisuss sepnpuy; (Z
sausby [BjuswUIBA0D pue soppny Aunog ydasor 1g :sanog (1

889'¥ZL'68L $

)
)
)
)

1SIION

192 Buiddeaag pue joaag |e30L

859'pLZ'gLL 199q Burddeuarg 12101
£99'06L'8EE & 13410 rejo L
000'520°ZL %00°00L 000'520'ZL Runon
ydasor 1 jo Aeig anand
000'05¢g'e %00°00L 000'08¢'9 Aresqr ogngd
SHIRH-UUD4-BYEMEYSIY
TSE'C06'69 %00°00L T5E'206'69 ENMEYSIA JO AUD
Qo0'sLe'e %00°001 000's18'e Keiq 3isiped meN
~diysumo [, SAIQ
big'zi1'see %00°00L LLE'ZLL'SET puag yinog jo Ao
000'0Z6'0L $  %00°00L oo0'oZe'0L  § Aunog ydaser g
IS|00UOS UBYY ISYIO
S66'£20'08¢ § S|O0YIS [R10)
Z90'855' %EL'LS 2s9'vie's uonetodio)
(00425 PAYHUL YHON uowf|
966'L¥9'PL %995 000'080'LY uopetodiod)
[00YDS PalUN SHIBIH MaN
Ste'ses L %6279 000°€Z8'LL uoljelodiod [OUIS UUSID Uyor
285'865'£8 %00°001 885'865'/8 uonesodiod
[OOUIS UISIPBIN SIUBK YU
055'8.2'vS %00°00L 055'8L.'vS exemeysiy QLD 10oyes
SSP'LPE'90Z & %0000 SSY'Lb6'e0z § uoelodiog [eoyss
Aunwwon pusg ynog
(v) sjooyas
1830 ONIdJVTHINO
000°0SP'LE $§  9%0000L 000'0sP'LL ¢ Awouyiny Lodiiy Aunog ydesor s
Junowy JUBIIB unowy 1934 LO3¥1a
Aunog ydesor 1g 03 sigeodiddy 12101

0L0Z ‘1€ ¥39WID3Q 40 SY

(€) (2) {1) 1930 DNIddVTEIAQ ANV LID3HIG 40 NOILYLNdWOD

ALRKEOHLINY LHOdHIV ALNNGD H43SOr 'LS

49



OLOZ 401 8|ge)ieae Jou uoneuuo| ()
SJUBWILIDACS) JO |I2UNGY B3Iy BURILDYY [@0inog  (¢)
S80S Juswdolanag S2I0PHOA J0 JusWedaq euelpy| 9ounog  (Z)

SIsAjeuy DILUOUSYT JO nesung '20IaWwwon) jo Juawedsq ‘g eaInog (L) issloN
lor 0ig'eel %St 860'87 Ly OZY L 1002
Loy A %E'S Zvi'ee 9620492 €002
19p 0se'zel %E'G LTB'6T org'988’L £002
Lor Zir'eel %L'G viL1e 6E6'¥6Z'8 $00¢
1op $80'GEL %Z'S vSe'ze 6.1615'8 5002
Lab LlZ'eel %G 6cL'cee 0Z22'800'6 900<
Lop LiL'PEL %l'G 9e9've 18Z'98E'8 2002
1ot 8G/'Ze1 %99 coe'se L6996 2002
Lor 12821 %9'LL rAWA 25 86Z'682'6 3 600¢
19% 5%'221 %S 1L {v) (¥) 0102
(g) son auenbg (2} 92104 t0qeET] (2) wwswLoidwoaun (1) swoauy| euden sag (1) {spuesnoy u1) Jea)
ul ealy Aunos ydesor 1 funoy ydasor s funoy ydasor g AWOIU [BUOSIDH

SUVIA TVISId NIL 1SV

SIOILSILY LS DINONODE NV DIHdVYOOW3a
ALHOHLNY LH04UIV ALNNOD H4ISOr LS

Aunos ydasoer g

50



"LOOZ 40} uoiewopur Butpnioul s|gellea JouU s O0Z o} Joud uoneuLIo

(PoeWS3) 11 /'8Z1 SeM SOIOPIOM [BI0} 6007 "5 'TE) SBM 800Z Ul 30:0pu0mM (210} unod ydesor 1S (g)

%Ce ST cgg‘es
%eg0 8z [
%0F 0 iZ LES
%L 0 74 Svs
%cE'0 sz 965
%er 0 €T 865
%EL0 £z ¥iS
Y%bt0 Z 785
%90 ¥ £L9
%LE0 0< 6L9
%8t 0 Bl 1€9
%80 gl ££9
%180 Ll 8/9
%ES0 al 00L
%6570 Sl LLL
%990 ¥l 1/g
%880 €l 006
%830 Zl 006
%vL0 kb 9g6
%S0 ol 266
%8L0 6 LE0L
%Z80 8 2501
%SG6°0 L L52L
%0} 9 19el
%09°L G IXA YA
%Lle L ¥ oave
%CPC € Zlze
%L9°C Z 11548
%SS'C L L04F

(g) juawAoldz Nuey saahiojduig
Aunog g0
jo abejuansayg
2002

"BldfelieA. Jou S1 0LOZ 20 600Z JO) Lonewlolul pajiesa (z)

Aunod ydasor 1§ 10 S0IsWIL0D JO Jaquiey) Y o (L)  :saloN

diystajea(] ajigowony

[e12 - Bulnjoenuepy
SIS [EDIPBI/BIRD) UleeH
|5318 - Bulnenuepy
Buunioeinuepy

aoueINSU|

JISWUIBAQD)

S|00Y2G |BIyDO B /BeALd
{(luswamseay areoyyesH) suoneay dHgnd/Bunaepy
(21015 1dagy/sauao0in) EjeY
SVIBT [ROIPSIN/BIED UNESH
VIS [B)S0

Buumpenue

Buumoelnuey

uiesy [ejusp/bulasunos
JUBWUISACD
salsIaAIln/seb (00

sjooyos dlignd

sjoauns 21gnd

deq - eey

(soued019) 1239

uoniisu] [eloueutyrsueg
JUOULIBACD

s|eydsoH
Aquessy/Buunioeindepy
sjooyadg dland

s|endsoH
satusteaun/sebapon
"SSSUTSNg J0 adAL

(2) 09V SHVIA ININ ANV AVIA LNIHYND
(1) SYIAAOTdWI IVdIDNRd
VNVIANI ‘ALNNOD HAISOr 1S

das AslinD

10M N/E - 191 N/

UUI[D pusg Ynog

‘ou| ‘Auedwo? ISNoYUEMA (991G
uonelodion yosog Lagoy

Auedwod sourinsu| lemny Apaqn
exemeysIy Jo A0

pusg Yinog - SuAepA HOL O 983001 aY .
"SU| ‘$JBI00SSY AaueS) ssald

U sehap

"OU[ ‘UolEPUNO [ESIPSIY PUSG Uinog
S0INIBG IBISOd '8N

uonelodion 1ehieg

[[PMASUOH

19jua) ucsipey

Aunes ydasor 18

pusg yines Ausiaaun eue|puy|
exemeySIy Jo Al (00US

uonesodio] [0oyDS UCSIPEIN-SILUBH-ULS
Hew-ep

Syajleunsdng s,UIHBN

yueg a0INog 1s)

puag unog jo AnD

U JBIUS)) [Boipa [euciBoy ydasor uies
[BloU3O) WY

uonesodio) [ocyas Alunwwo) puag yines
WBISAS YlesH (euowsy

aweq] aNoN jo Auseaun

TSAodwg

51



00011 2'2e8's$ uoneniea 100z ageled 000z (£)
ve.L' L1 9L y'es uonenieA 0102 sigeled 6007 (2)
$2ILID0SSY pue ybnequin 't H pue Joypny Ajuneo ydesor 11g eounog (1) :sejoN

%156 0.£'699'v5S %8EL0L 0se'zZevIe
%beL € 082'62V'TL %<9°0 oL 066'+9L'28
%000 - - %8970 6 pce'osy' /6
%00°0 - - %Le0 g 0£8'09Z'89
%E0°L 14 0Z£'686'66 %880 L 0Z¥'990'v.
%00°0 - - %86°0 g 0/6°158'28
YA 2 060'060°'352 %t0'L g 09Z'rL6'L8
%2¥0 & 0L¥P'96°LE %S0°L 14 0gs'sEr'ee
%00°0 - - %80°L £ 0gz'2oL'Le
%951 4 00t'+26'06 %09°L Z 02 19G'PEL
%8L 0 L oLv'L1LZ'sY %¥9L 3 068°08/°2¢1
¢) ON[E] possassy  jUey IN[e;A PassSossy {Z)onjep pessessy  juey BN|eA passassy
s|gexe} g0 agexe] ajqexe] [ejl0) a|qexe)
Jo abeguaalay jo ebejuadiayg
1002 oLoz
0L0Z ‘L€ ¥3gwao3a

(1) SUIAVAXVL ALYISOHd TVLIONINd
VNVIANI ‘ALNNQD HAISOr “1LS

elol

(damioenuepy) [amAsuoH

{iejey) -dion 8l0lg UISUSROYDS
(re3ay) (121N g Apsisaun

(suoyd) "oQ suoydsia] |I2g BuBIpUYDES
(leyey)  anid s,wes / LBy (epy

(19218) 8103 N/I ¥oL N/I
(Buunyoemnuepy) 077 ‘dion [eIsusD WY
{(aieoyliesl ) WalSAS YB3l [BLIOWSN
{fnn) Jemod o1303(3 uedLBWY
{Buisnop) euelpu| JO 89S0 plempg

Iskedxey

52



oL
6
0l
LI
€l
<l
£l
<l

6

2

@) souiy

10 JaquIny

00L'v
2zZ0'vy
9ZL'2e
0/9'vE
£88's¢
212'ce
S0¥'Se
£60'Le
z8s'6lL
G0S'/L

UOREIAY
[LIETEETS)

Auedwiod auo UBY} BJ0W ‘SISED JLUOS U] "IDIAIDS PaINPaYDS ARINBBI UM SaILBALLOD JO 19qUWINY 3l SJUassidal syl (2)

988'C oLz
ove'e 9eg'iz
8vZ's r AN A
$08'¢ +/8'9Z
yEL'e 8€0'2Z
or6'e $0L'0Z
898'Z 0s0'02
8£9' 6L6'61
9Z8'L 0zL'5l
¥5E'L gco'tl
Om.:wU m..w_._._wo
Jabuassey

(1) sUoReIed0 ubIg

SHYIA TVOSIH NAL LSV
SINIWINVIANZR YIONISSYd ONIANTONI SOLLSILYLS TYNOILVHILO

"qry Jegnogied e 0} aciASs apiacsd O} JSLIED [BUOREBU B UM PII0BII0D

LLS'LPR'ZL
866°/65'G1
£6Z'C0P L1
0Z9'PLS'LL
96P'55/'61
AT AN A A
L8'FE0'LZ
828'3¢L'6L
8G5'204'11
801L'92Z'SL

HO

‘Bulpuer J0 yo axe} B Se pauysp sl wonelads uy (L)

YOr'ZS0'L L
rAX-F AL AN
6EL'2L6L'Z1
§Ze'6L2'EL
SPZ'8TLSL
298'2£8'81
LOB'6P00Z
0z0'268'91L
Z06'205'6
6LL'Z8F0L

ug

Spunod ur obien

ALIBOHLNY LHOdHIY ALNNOD HAISOr "1

0/2'99¢
6.0°C0F
£0L'cor
126'68€
Lre'spe
698°19¢
zeLese
£0v'05e
zeeole
9Lg'LLE

pauEdsq

Lgr'ese
LO0'60Y
88020
901'06E
yoc'gye
052'29€
z9s'e8te
5L0'¥SE
SrLYLE
L80'SLE

= EGE]

SIoDUassed auidny

1S3J0N

100z
00T
cooz
¥00Z
5002
8002
2002
8002
6002
oLoz

53



LEOLFPRLS

00'964

00'009'9L

00051

00°LES'CY

0o0'sey

00"00%'L

00°228'08

LEES6°LL

00'88t'6€%

WiNiiaig (enuuy

fenuuy 000'05Z$

uspiou| /sfquonpad 000'05Z$
uotIu 6¢

spuog AlejoN

00°000'05Z$ - asuadxz enxg
luapiou Jad s[qronpag 000'0LS
£06'0EF'99% anfen

Ayliqen A 00008

8oUaLN00 Jad ajquonpag 00°000° LS
pnes4 sepndwo)
Assuaysig asfoidw3 000'00L$

uury fonod ol |$ - 9seRsIq Aq Ig
sakodwg yoes uoliw 1§ - 25eaSI] A |19
U2pIady YoBa UoNjiu 1§ - JUSpIodY Ag 19

1SUOLOW painsuun 000°000° 1S

{E2(P3A 000'SS

uoIsieD/Pag/000' 1S

BnsusyaIdWo)/Pa/000° LS/ANIGe 000°000° LS

I2UBUNDIQ Y2BT 000'SE
asuadx3g 1eaPSIN 000'LS

sbBeranen Aissuousig
Aleonply

abelaro Axfrder] 100
B $0}0an(

anang ArejoN

SADIYBA PESUIIT
IV pue ysues]-uj p
‘Oia ‘g Ausdoug

puog [e1o0
MaNd SJaInsess]

Aisauoysi(]
aafodwigrewityy

uonesuadwon SISNIOAA

S3DIUIA PESURDIT-Od
1g Autrqeny
oIny ssauisng

siadeay siebueH 000°'000'SS
Ruger (ersuen

SBEIBACD JO
uonduosag

bl=kg=4 O QL-Lg-4

LL-LO-4 ©} 01-LO-L

§1-80-01 O 80-ZZ-8

FL-LO-6 9} 0L-LO-6

L1-82-1 93 01-82-L

L-L3-L O 0L-L0-2

LL-GL-8 O} Gl-41-8

LE-b0-L 9 Ql-io-L

Li=10-4 S OL-E0-L

Poiiag Aaijod

010Z ‘1€ ¥AAWIDIA NO 30804 NI IDNVHNSNI
ALROHLAY LYOdYIY ALNNOD HAISOr 1S

SZS1LE0 Jepulg
CEYgIrLs
QON.BEL6C0L

00NGEZ66E0L
OONITFESEDL

WOGErZe6e9

6rLZPZ0L

0L 0L¥6200d20

610-989896-L2V IDM

00-LvE-59e-2¥

V126612 ON
BN AJMod

Sia[aagil/ned 15
U] ‘SIS

B2URINSU YD

Raing
WBISIANOD AUNDaS YND

FoURINSU sl9janel ]

faung usaysapp

isodaqy Ayjapiy

[ergnpy Asqry

SIBUME) oYY

fyensen g Auadoid 8oy

TSUIIED JO QWEN

54



SN Allep | ~dIoD WBLINGS H(OJON PEOJITEY WIRISBAA YUNLL PUEID AT AlEP SUIBS 7 -IL0D p/E AP Sules; Z -yegury

SPUIBIM & ' Allep § ‘0BeaIYD UMOIUMOP O} 19U - {830US YINOS) OLDIN

FodiTy HO ~e9TAIss ey

OdSNYHL ‘PUNoUASIS ‘Aempiy 'SIEH,O ©F WSt UDE0D

Wbk aty sumot Sdn

SdSN -lew ssasdxy ofzed a1y uienon

Saus] Iy BleQ $521dXT 1RIopD

-AQ papiaoad oBieS JTE 3O dnydid Afieq -obied iy

UORE||EISU|SOUBUSILIBUI -SDUIOINY GBTS-LEZ/ LS

S01AIBS BUI Uredal jeImorus 'IMeylano Joyadod ineyaas aulbua -aouBUBUrel Yeudhe ‘uonoruisul B} ‘ednIeg Jepeyn UOLEINY DIRIBRY

S[QE[(EAE Sa01/d05 10jesad( osey poaxid

9cT'L 059'g Z51 [EZEN

Zee'z 0s RECLEIN D) 051U 2/QH0 Zy pajun

006'L 0S ra0 nenag [ uoRosuuoD Byg

058 0s ra0 sjodeauuty il uoNvsUu0D BYeq

055 05 rao [ENVENTES 1 uonovuUUOD EYaQ

000'L 05 rao EIUE[Y 0z uonpauLo) Bjjeg

8L T3 g-0Hg BUEA3ID i UoRIBUUOT [EJUSURUOD

009 051 08aN GPUBLIQ/PIOJUES ¥ 1y ueibay

00g oSl o8aN ESIP/XUIOY z 1Iry JueiBayry

00E oSl 08AN sebap, se F2 1y Juelba)ly

00g 051 oeain Sjed ISHsIEMIER ] 2 iy Juelbapy

i i1 Buneeg pasn juswdinbg uoneuilsag sainuedagq Soul|Ly ._amcmmmmm
Aieq ‘Bay Aplaap femoy XeW lentu) Apyeom

(uBrapn) 00z - 222

{spuodes ‘sejnuius ‘sea.69p)

(suoisuawng) -267 33eaalry ubisag
epnubuon
Spm Y 051 X BUO| Y 00LZ - 9£/81 SRIM Y 62 X BUOL ' 0OS'Y - HLZ/16 S9PIM 1 051 X BUO Y ZLb'S - 1LZ/ME6

MSL'SS 8L 98

NuG'SL 2P LE epniieT

wodugsAlmmmidizy SUSAOM SBST-6EZ/LS X8I 06ST-TSZIVLS
1019211 OANDAXT “I'V"Y [0lIeY2S "D Uyor

St yesoay paseg
B6. TuOREASIY

sAemuny

55

8299 NI ‘Pueg yinog
aAuQq ssalbold v

Kuoyny Lodity funog ydesor g ay3 Aq pajerado
Hodury jeuoibay puag ynog

LLOZ ‘L aunp aAldayg UOHBULION| 32U31319Y YIND



14 95 8g 69 8§ 85 85 8§ 8g 9g
gl ol Sl gl il A Ll Ll L Ll
4 Ll €l 143 14 4 gl €l gl 12
Ll L Ll ol ol ol 0L ol 0l 8
€ 8 e 8 8 8 8 g 8 L
ol oL Ll L 6 8 0l ol OL Ol
1002 200z £00Z 14111r4 §00¢ 9002 1002 8002 600¢ oLoC

010Z ‘L£ JaquadaQ jo se seakoidwy Jusjeanby awn-|ng

SHVIA TVOSId NIL 1SV
NOILONNA A9 S33A0TJINI LNITVAINDI FWIL 11N
ALROHLNY 180431V ALNNOD H4ISOr "1S

V101
f3a4eg o11qnd
play

[euILIS
aJUBUIUIRY

suonesadp

uoljenSIUIWPY

NOILONNA

56



‘9007 ubnouyy 100z sieak Joj s[ge|ieae Jou ) uolewo (1) 130N

WiN WiIN WiN ¥IN Y/N W/N 002'2 008’z 058’z 8p1'e 20[AI93 10} S||eD sjewxolddy
/N WIN WIN VIN WIN WIN Sl L 9L rA) SIaDI]/SUOnBYD ABIS
WIN WIN /N VIN VIN WiN e 6z z8r zsp suolE|oIA @3uBUIpIO Hodily
/N WIN WiN ViN YIN WIN 6L et gL €z spodey jeuonppy snouea
WIN WiIN WiN ¥IN ViN W/N pl oL gL ol siseuy
YIN ¥IN WiN VIN WIN W/N $e 9z 0t o sasuodsay [eapapy
VIN ¥IN WiN vIN WIN VIN € Ly Z2 € sl|eD 2l JBYI0 puR Yemnly
f3a4eg o1jgngd
WIN WiIN /N /N WIN /N 500'S 6 £20'S ors's sinoy - wawdinbg mous Jejol
/N WiN WIN VIN W/N YIN 009 ) 4 4 799 SMO|o
WIN VIN VIN /N VIN W/N 96¢ 22z 604 9lg'L S19peoT
WIN WIN WIN wIN /N VIN 0/5'L 2062 g£5'L 096°z Stoo1g
WIN WIN WIN WIN Y/N /N 286 599 FA% 80/ s1emolg
co:m.‘_m.ao 10 SINOH - SDIYSA
pley
WiN WIN WIN WiIN Y/N V/N ors LS €29 599 PassE00.d SIBPIQ HIOM,
W/IN WIN /N WIN /N ViIN ¥85'05L $8G'0S1 +RS'0SL  PeP'OBL pourelureyy sbejood alenbg
jeuiwa

asuBUUIRY

YN YIN YN YiN ViN YN FA A 8612 $0L'Z gel'l $N0BYD JsjewiLiad
YN VIN VIN VIN YiIN /N 6211 951'1L 890°L 76 SHIBYD eultz]
YN YIN ViIN ViIN VIN YiIN 8296'1 S89'L SO¥'L rrAN" 034D pleld
VIN YN VIN VIN VIN YN o¥e Lig g9l 127" (SWV.LON} uswury o} a2110N
YIN YIN WiIN ViN ViIN YiIN 898 89 9Lg L6V spoday UopUOD plel

suonelado
L1002 200z £002 002 S00Z 002 1002 8002 6002 oLoz NOILONNS

Jea ) [edsi4

(1) SUVAA TVOSIE NIL LSV
NOILONND A8 SHOLVYIIAN]I ONILYHI40
ALMOHLNY LAOdHIY ALINNOD HAISOr 1S

57



900z UBnoiul |00z SieaA Joj s|ge|leAR jou S| uoneuso] (1) 19JON

WIN YIN W/N YiIN VIN VN b I b L
VN Y/N YIN VIN YIN VIN € ¥ ¥ v
VIN YIN WiIN W/IN YIN VIN L4 14 ¥ v
VIN VIN VN Y/N VIN VIN b L L b
VIN Y/N YiN VN VN VIN b b b b
VIN YIN Y/IN V¥iN VN VN b 8 L b
VIN VIN YiN VN VN VIN 14 ¥ ¥ 14
/N YIN VIN V¥IN YIN WIN S G S G
YIN VIN wIN ViIN VIN YIN £ € € £
VIN YN ¥iN VN VN VN L I b 8
/N YN WiN V/IN YIN VIN 4 [4 [4 4
VIN YIN VIN YIN YIN WIN £ S S g
WIN VIN WiN YIN VIN WIN 14 ¥ ¥ ¥
VIN YN VIN YN VIN VIN L b L L
VIN YIN V/N YiN VIN VIN b L b L
VN YIN YIN YIN VN VIN b I L b
VIN VIN wiIN WIN VIN WIN 14 ¥ ¥ 14
WIN VIN WiN YiIN VN YN [4 [4 4 4
(1174 c00¢ €002 002 S002 9002 1002 8002 6002 oloe

sasng
S3OIYIA 444V
spun 1o1ed
suopels

Rges ognd

sladoomg

syonu] Bunybn

SISMOW

$yonuL dn-4oid

SMO|d

JapeoT 20H yoeg

SJ2peoT

swoolg

slamojg JIy 19r/slamolg
A ETTR

siadoamg

s13peoT

uep obsen

syonsL dn-¥oid
|euiuLa}

ajueuUIEH

58

3oL dN-401d
suoneladp

uonoaung

Jeap [essid

(1) SHVIA TV¥OSI4 NIL LSV

NOLLONNd Ag SOILSLLV]S LIASSY TVLIdVD
ALROHLNY LAOJHIV ALNNOD HAISOr LS



COMPLIANCE
SECTION
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STATE OF INDIANA

AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER STATE BOARD OF ACCOUNTS
302 WEST WASHINGTON STREET
ROOM E418
INDIANAPOLIS, INDIANA 46204-2769

Telephone: (317) 232-2513
Fax: (317) 232-4711
Web Site: www.in.gov/sboa

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

TO: THE OFFICIALS OF THE ST. JOSEPH COUNTY AIRPORT AUTHORITY,
ST. JOSEPH COUNTY, INDIANA

We have audited the financial statements of the St. Joseph County Airport Authority (Airport
Authority), as of and for the year ended December 31, 2010, and have issued our report thereon dated
May 12, 2011. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Airport Authority's internal control over
financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our
opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effective-
ness of the Airport Authority's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Airport Authority's internal control over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions to prevent, or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combina-
tion of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstate-
ment of the Airport Authority's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described
in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
over financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We
did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be signifi-
cant deficiencies or material weaknesses, as defined above.
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS
(Continued)

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Airport Authority's financial state-
ments are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts and granis agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express
stich an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Airport Authority's management,
and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be
used by anyone other than these specified parties. In accordance with Indiana Code 5-11-5-1, this report
is a part of the public records of the State Board of Accounts and of the office examined.

STATE BOARD OF ACCOUNTS

May 12, 2011 Sptl /m,/% Seeartt
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STATE OF INDIANA

AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER STATE BOARD OF ACCOUNTS
302 WEST WASHINGTON STREET
~J ROOM E418

INDIANAPOLIS, INDIANA 46204-2769

Telephone: (317) 232-2513
Fax: (317) 232-4711
Web Site: www.in.gov/sboa

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS
APPLICABLE TO PASSENGER FACILITY CHARGE PROGRAM AND TO EACH MAJOR PROGRAM
AND INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PASSENGER
FACILITY CHARGE AUDIT GUIDE FOR PUBLIC AGENCIES AND OMB CIRCULAR A-133

TO: THE OFFICIALS OF THE ST. JOSEPH COUNTY AIRPORT AUTHORITY,
ST. JOSEPH COUNTY, INDIANA

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of the St. Joseph County Airport Authority (Airport Authority)
with the types of compliance requirements described in the Passenger Facility Charge Audit Guide for
Public Agencies (Guide), issued by the Federal Aviation Administration for its passenger facility charge
program, and in U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement
that are applicable to its major federal program for the year ended December 31, 2010. The Airport
Authority's major federal program is identified in the Summary of Auditor's Results section of the accom-
panying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws,
regulations, contracts and grants applicable to its major federal program is the responsibility of the Airport
Authority's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Airport Authority's compliance
based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133,
Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular
A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and
material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence about the District's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures
as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis
for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Airport Authority's compliance
with those requirements.

In our opinion, the Airport Authority complied in all material respects with the requirements
referred to above that are applicable to its passenger facility charge program and its major federal pro-
gram for the year ended December 31, 2010.

62



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS
APPLICABLE TO PASSENGER FACILITY CHARGE PROGRAM AND TO EACH MAJOR PROGRAM
AND INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PASSENGER
FACILITY CHARGE AUDIT GUIDE FOR PUBLIC AGENCIES AND OMB CIRCULAR A-133
(Continued)

Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of the Airport Authority is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective
internal control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to
the passenger facility charge program and federal programs. In planning and performing our audit, we
considered the Airport Authority's internal control over compliance with requirements that could have a
direct and material effect on a major federal program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the
purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effec-
tiveness of the Airport Authority's internal control over compliance,

A control deficiency in the Airport Authority's internal control over compliance exists when the
design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of per-
forming their assigned functions, to prevent or detect noncompliance with a type of compliance require-
ment of a federal program on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combina-
tion of control deficiencies, that adversely affects the entity's ability to administer a federal program such
that there is more than a remote likelihood that noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program that is more than inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the entity's internat

control.

A materiat weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that
resuits in more than a remote likelihood that material noncompliance with a type of compliance require-
ment of a federal program will not be prevented or detected by the entity's internal control.

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control that
might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that we consider to be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses, as

defined above,

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Airport Authority's management,
and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be
used by anyone other than these specified parties. |n accordance with Indiana Code 5-11-5-1, this report
is & part of the public records of the State Board of Accounts and of the office examined.

STATE BOARD OF ACCOUNTS

May 12, 2011 57t oo St
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ST. JOSEPH COUNTY AIRPORT AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
For The Year Erdled December 31, 2010

Pass-Through
Federal Entity (or Other) Total
Federal Grantor Agency/Pass-Through Entity CFDA Identifying Federal Awards
Cluster Title/Program Title/Project Title Number Number Expended
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
Direct grant:
Airport Improvement Program 20.108 AlP-03-18-0079-37 § 117,015
AlP-03-18-0079-38 3,246,069
AlP-03-18-0079-39 1,318,637
AlP-03-18-0079-40 28,469
AlP-03-18-0079-41 2,253,055
Total for program 6,863,245
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
Direct grant:
Law Enforcement Officer Reimbursement Agreement Program 97.090 HSTS0208HSLRO9 148,566
Tolal fedteral awards expended $ 7,111,811

The accompanying note is an integra! part of the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards,
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ST. JOSEPH COUNTY AIRPORT AUTHORITY
NOTE TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes the federal grant activity of the
St. Joseph County Airport Authority (primary government) and is presented in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America which is the basis of accounting used in the
presentation of the financial statements. Accordingly, the amount of federal awards expended is based
on when the activity refated to the award occurs. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule
may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic financial statements.
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ST. JOSEPH COUNTY AIRPORT AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Section | — Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements:
Type of auditor's report issued:
Internal controf over financial reporting:
Material weaknesses identified?
Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered to be
material weaknesses?
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?
Federal Awards:
Internal control over major programs:
Material weaknesses identified?
Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered to be
material weaknesses?
Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in
accordance with Section 510(a) of Circular A-1337?

|dentification of Major Programs:

CFDA
Number Name of Federal Program or Cluster
20.106 Airport Improvement Program

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs:

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

Section 1l - Financial Statement Findings

No matters are reportable.

Section Hl — Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

Ne matters are reporfable,
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Ungqualified

no
none reported

no

no
none reported

Unqualified

no

$300,000

yes



ST. JOSEPH COUNTY AIRPORT AUTHORITY
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS

No matters are reportable.
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ST. JOSEPH COUNTY AIRPORT AUTHORITY
EXIT CONFERENCE

The contents of this report were discussed on May 12, 2011, with John C. Schalliol, A.A.E.,
Executive Director; Michael Guljas, Director of Administration and Finance; Lauren Winger, Accounting
Manager; and David R. Sage, President of the Board of Directors. Our audit disclosed no material items
that warrant comment at this time.
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